
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay 
service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, December 9, 2014                                                                                                City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
RECEPTION FOR OUTGOING COUNCILMEMBER WAYNE SNOEY 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  November 18, 2014, 11:15 a.m. Special Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Mountain Meadows Final Plat Resolution (Hart) 
C-4. Approve Abaco Pacific Agreement for Real Estate Services Amendment (Vondran) 
C-5. Approve Wilson Fleet Services Agreement (Vondran) 
C-6. Approve Recycling Events for 2015 Agreement (Vondran) 
C-7. Pass Ordinance Adopting a 2014 Budget Amendment (Hendrickson) 
C-8. Approve Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan Update Consultant Agreement (Vondran) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Testimony from the Public and Adopt an Ordinance Regarding Kent School District’s Six Year 

Capital Facilities Plan and School Impact Fees (Hart) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Consider Interlocal Agreement with the Cities of Black Diamond and Maple Valley (Hart) 
3. Consider Process to Appoint New Councilmember (Council) 
4. Consider Ordinance Adopting the CY2015 Operating and Capital Budget (Hendrickson) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 

PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 

ADJOURN 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  December 9, 2014   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  NOVEMBER 18, 2014, 11:15 AM, CITY COUNCIL 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the November 18, 2014, 11:15 a.m. City 
Council Special Meeting Minutes. 

1 of 167



Unapproved Draft – November 18, 2014 Special Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  December 9, 2014 
 
 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, November 18, 2014 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Special Meeting was called to order in the City Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, 
Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, November 18, 2014, at 11:22 a.m., with Mayor 
Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager; Sara Springer, City 
Attorney; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto called the special meeting to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
approve the agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1.  Select Interview Format for Finalist Interviews. 
 
Personnel Manager Noreen Beaufrere informed the Council that a decision was needed on 
whether to hold the interviews in an open or closed session. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
hold the city manager interviews in Executive Session.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the eleven interview questions presented in the handout.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion 
carried.  
 
Mr. Greg Protham of the Protham consulting firm spoke to the Council about the city manager 
interview process. 
 
Councilmembers discussed the interview process and asked questions, and Mr. Protham 
provided responses. 
 
City Attorney Sara Springer provided further information on the interview process. 

2 of 167



Unapproved Draft – November 18, 2014 Special Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  December 9, 2014 
 
 
 
RECESS FOR LUNCH: 
Councilmembers recessed from 11:36 a.m. to 1:06 p.m. for a luncheon with the candidates and 
management team staff. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
To evaluate the qualifications of applicants for public employment (RCW 42.30.110(1)(g)) from 
1:06 p.m. to 6:58 p.m. 
 
It was announced the City Council would enter into Executive Session until 5:15 p.m.  At 5:15 
p.m. the Executive Session was extended until 6:30 p.m.  At 6:30 p.m. the Executive Session was 
extended until 6:50 p.m.  At 6:50 p.m. the Executive Session was extended until 6:58 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:58 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

3 of 167



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  December 9, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #31801-31837, including ACH Payments and an Electronic 
Funds Transfer in the Amount of $232,303.17, Dated November 24, 2014 and Paylocity 
Payroll Checks #1003127298-1003127313 and Paylocity Payroll Check #1003127427-
1003127427 inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $152,557.51, Dated 
December 5, 2014. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #31801-31837, including ACH 
Payments and an Electronic Funds Transfer in the Amount of $232,303.17, 
Dated November 24, 2014 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003127298-
1003127313 and Paylocity Payroll Check #1003127427-1003127427 
inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $152,557.51, 
Dated December 5, 2014. 
 
 
 
  
 

 

4 of 167



5 of 167



6 of 167



7 of 167



8 of 167



9 of 167



10 of 167



11 of 167



12 of 167



13 of 167



14 of 167



Consent Agenda Item C-3  
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: December 9, 2014 
 

SUBJECT:  PROPOSED RESOLUTION APPROVING FINAL PLAT OF MOUNTAIN 
MEADOWS ESTATES LU13-0009/0004 FOR RECORDING.  

  
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed Resolution  

a. Exhibit 1 – Mountain Meadows Estates Final Plat Map 
2. Mitigated Determination of Non-Significance dated October 4, 2013 
3. Preliminary Plat Hearing Examiner Findings, Conclusions and Decision dated November 18, 

2013 
 
PREPARED BY: Salina Lyons, Principal Planner 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Overview 
On April 17, 2013, Mike Chauffer and Randy Goodwin of Eagle Creek Development, on behalf 
of the Gradwohl family trust, submitted a subdivision application to subdivide 5.75 acres into 
twenty nine (29) single family residential lots in the R-6 zone (City File No. is LU13-
0009/0004).  The existing single family lot will remain. Water service is provided by Covington 
Water District and sewer service is provided by Soos Creek Water and Sewer District.  
Emergency services are provided by the City of Covington and the Kent Fire Department, 
Regional Fire Authority.  The property contains a portion of the PSE 230kv line 100 foot 
easement which runs north and south through the site. No habitable structures can be placed 
within the 100 foot PSE easement. There are no environmentally critical areas on site.  
(Attachment 1) 
 
The City issued a Mitigated Determination of Non-Significance (MDNS) for the preliminary plat 
on October 4, 2013 (Attachment 2). The City of Covington hearing examiner held an open 
record public hearing on the proposal on November 14, 2013.   The examiner approved the plat 
subject to 49 conditions as noted in the Examiner’s Report dated November 18, 2013 
(Attachment 3). Upon preliminary plat approval the development project was sold to Mountain 
Meadows LLC, and CES NW Inc. completed the engineering and final plat designs for the 
project.  The Notice to Proceed (clearing and grading permit) for construction of the site 
improvements was issued on June 26, 2014.   
 
Site Improvements 
The subdivision is accessed via an extension of 160th Avenue SE and the construction of SE 
252nd Pl., which will allow for future access to the undeveloped properties to the east and west of 
this site.  Stormwater runoff collected onsite and conveyed to the existing Reserve Regional 
Detention Pond, which is located southeast of the proposed plat.  Recreation facilities associated 
with the development are provided on-site.  A trail connecting 160th Ave SE to 156th Ave SE is 
located within an existing access and utility easement along the north boundary of the site.  The 
trail and the recreation facilities will be the responsibility of the homeowners association.  
  

15 of 167



 
Financial Guarantees 
The improvements have been completed in conformance with the approved engineering plans. 
Any required improvements that have not yet been completed have been secured by an 
acceptable financial guarantee.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
City staff has reviewed the plat development final engineering plans filed by the developer for 
conformance with applicable City of Covington engineering standards, for conformance with the 
SEPA DNS Threshold Determination, and for conformance with other applicable local and state 
laws and regulations.  Staff has approved these drawings.   
 
Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of Mountain Meadows Estates, City File No. LU13-
0009/0004 for recording.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Request additional information from staff. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Approval and recording of the final plat will have no direct fiscal impact. Subsequent single-
family residential building permit applications in the plat will generate revenue for the city for 
required expenditure of staff resources for building plan review and building construction 
inspection. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance       X     Resolution  _____Motion   _____Other 
 

Councilmember _____________ moves, and Councilmember ____________ 
seconds to pass a Resolution approving the Final Plat of Mountain Meadows 
Estates, City File No. LU13-0009/0004 for recording. 
 

REVIEWED BY:   Community Development Director 
   Deputy Finance Director 
   Interim City Manager 

City Attorney 
    

16 of 167



RESOLUTION NO. 14-20 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF MOUNTAIN 
MEADOWS ESTATES LU13-0009/0004 FOR RECORDING.  

  
WHEREAS, an application has been received by the City under Application No. LU13-

0009/0004 for the final plat of Mountain Meadows Estates; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Covington issued a Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) 

for the preliminary plat on October 4, 2013, and  

 

WHEREAS, the preliminary plat has been reviewed by the City of Covington Hearing 

Examiner, who held an open record public hearing on the proposal on November 14, 2013; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Hearing Examiner issued a decision on November 18, 2013 

recommending approval of the preliminary plat with conditions; and 

 

WHEREAS, city staff has reviewed the engineering plans for plat development filed by 

the developer, has found that these engineering plans substantially conform with applicable local 

and state laws, codes, and regulations, and with the preliminary plat conditions of approval, and 

therefore has approved these plans for construction; and  

 

WHEREAS, city staff has inspected the plat improvements constructed by the 

Developer, and finds that these improvements have been substantially completed in conformance 

with the approved engineering plans, or that the developer has financially assured the completion 

of such improvements; now, therefore  

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Covington, King County, 

Washington, as follows: 

 

ATTACHMENT 1

17 of 167



Section 1.  The City of Covington hereby approves the Final Plat of Mountain Meadows 

Estates for recording in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit 1, subject to the completion of 

those certain plat improvements for which developer has posted financial guarantees and has 

agreed to complete as provided in the attached Exhibit 1; and further subject to maintenance of 

the plat property as set forth in the maintenance bonds.  

 

  PASSED in open and regular session on this 9th day of December 2014. 

 

       _____________________________ 
       Mayor Margaret Harto 
ATTESTED: 
      
         
Sharron Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 

18 of 167



RESOLUTION NO. 14-20 
EXHIBIT 1

19 of 167



20 of 167



21 of 167



22 of 167



23 of 167



ATTACHMENT 2

24 of 167



25 of 167



ATTACHMENT 3

26 of 167



27 of 167



28 of 167



29 of 167



30 of 167



31 of 167



32 of 167



33 of 167



34 of 167



35 of 167



36 of 167



37 of 167



38 of 167



39 of 167



40 of 167



41 of 167



  

 Consent Agenda Item C-4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  December 9, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:   AUTHORIZE THE INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT 

#3 TO AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES WITH ABACO PACIFIC, INC. FOR 
REAL ESTATE SERVICES.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, PE, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):    
1. Amendment #3 to Agreement for Services with Abaco Pacific, Inc. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Shellie Bates, Programs Supervisor/Public Works 
 
EXPLANATION:  
In July of 2002 the city council authorized the city manager to execute an agreement with Abaco 
Pacific, Inc. (“Abaco”) for professional real estate services, primarily to assist the city with the 
acquisition of numerous real estate parcels for both right-of-way and park purposes.  Abaco also 
provided assistance in utility relocations and in the oversight of subcontractors on public works 
projects.   
 
In May of 2009 the council approved a new Agreement for Services (“Agreement”) with Abaco 
to perform various real estate services on a task order basis.  Amendment #1 to the Agreement 
extended the term from December 31, 2011 to December 31, 2013.  Amendment #2 to the 
Agreement extended the term from December 31, 2013 to December 31, 2014. 
 
The city continues to have a need for real estate services and Abaco has continually provided 
quality services. As such, staff is recommending for council to authorize the Interim City 
Manager to execute Amendment #3 to the Agreement (Attachment 1) to extend the term to 
December 31, 2015, and allow the city to continue its productive relationship with Abaco.  All 
other terms of the Agreement will remain unchanged.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Not authorize the city manager to execute Amendment #3 to the Agreement and direct staff to 
negotiate a new agreement with Abaco or find a new service provider. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Real estate services are included as part of the right-of-way costs budgeted in each individual 
Capital Improvement Project (CIP). 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 
 Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 

seconds, to authorize the Interim City Manager to execute Amendment #3 to the 
Agreement for Services with Abaco Pacific, Inc. for real estate services. 

 
REVIEWED BY: Interim City Manager, City Attorney, Deputy Finance Director 

42 of 167



 Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

 
Amendment #3 

 
Between the City of Covington and Abaco Pacific, Inc. 

 
That portion of Contract No. 924-09 between the City of Covington and Abaco Pacific, 
Inc. entered into by the parties on the 13th day of May, 2009 (“Agreement”), is amended 
pursuant to Sections 18 of said Agreement, as follows: 
 

1. Term of Agreement.  Section 3 of the Agreement shall be amended to 
extend the term of the Agreement until December 31, 2015. 

 
All other provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
Dated this 9th day of December, 2014. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment on the day and year 
written above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON 
 
 
____________________________________ 
By: Rob Hendrickson 
Its: Interim City Manager 
 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk    Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
 
ABACO PACIFIC, INC. 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
By: Jeri Cranney 
Its: President 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

43 of 167



Consent Agenda Item C-5 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  December 9, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE THE INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT 

FOR SERVICES WITH WILSON FLEET SERVICES TO PURCHASE AND 
SURPLUS USED VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Contract for Services with Wilson Fleet Services 
 
PREPARED BY:  Ross Junkin, Maintenance Supervisor 
 
EXPLANATION: 
In January 2012 the City Council approved a Contract for Services with Wilson Fleet Services.  
Since that time the city has used their services to purchase used vehicles and equipment and also 
to surplus office equipment and furniture and other equipment no longer needed by the city. 
 
By entering into a contract with Wilson Fleet Services we will be able to identify the 
specifications of a vehicle or piece of equipment and they will find it at auction.  They utilize 
auction sites throughout the entire country to assist in the search as well as keep prices down.  
Wilson Fleet Services will purchase, inspect, and make any necessary repairs to any vehicles the 
city decides to buy.  Only after the vehicle or equipment meets city specifications will the city 
agree to complete the purchase with Wilson Fleet Services.  This protects the city from 
purchasing potentially problem vehicles/equipment.  By using this service we will not be limited 
to purchasing locally, which has been past practice and doesn’t necessarily always fit our needs.  
Also, we believe that entering into this agreement with Wilson Fleet will decrease the purchase 
price on most vehicles and pieces of equipment we purchase for the City.  The City would also 
receive a one year warranty on all purchases from Wilson Fleet Services. 
 
City vehicles and equipment that are scheduled to be replaced will be done so per the “Covington 
Equipment Replacement Spreadsheet” which is reviewed and amended annually. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not to enter into an agreement with Wilson Fleet Services and research alternative ways of 
purchasing used vehicles and equipment and selling surplus vehicles and equipment.  Continue 
to use city time on researching and searching for vehicles to purchase for the city. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Costs associated with entering into this agreement with Wilson Fleet Services are the following: 
 Purchase price of each vehicle/piece of equipment will be the only dollars paid to Wilson 

Fleet Services.  All fees and other costs associated with purchasing a vehicle/equipment 
will be included within the purchase price. 

 City staff expects surplus costs to be reduced as well as proceeds from selling surplus 
items at auction to increase. 

 
 

44 of 167



CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the Interim City Manager to execute a Contract for 
Services with Wilson Fleet Services to purchase and surplus used vehicles 
and equipment. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  Interim City Manager; City Attorney, Deputy Finance Director 

45 of 167



Agreement for Services 
Between the City of Covington and Wilson Fleet Services 
Page 1 of 9 
 

 
CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

Between the City of Covington and Wilson Fleet Services 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the City of Covington, Washington, a 
municipal corporation (the “City"), and Wilson Fleet Services (the “Contractor”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has determined the need to have certain services performed for its citizens 
but does not have the resources to perform such services, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to have the Contractor perform such services pursuant to certain 
terms and conditions, 
 
 IN CONSIDERATION OF the mutual benefits and conditions set forth below, the parties hereto 
agree as follows: 
 
1. Scope and Terms of Services to be Performed by Contractor. The City hereby engages the 

Contractor, and the Contractor hereby agrees to offer the services as described and pursuant to the 
terms and conditions included in Exhibit A and Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
this reference as if fully set forth (the “Services”). In performing such Services, the Contractor shall 
at all times comply with all federal, state, and local statutes, rules, and ordinances applicable to the 
performance of such Services and the handling of any funds used in connection therewith. The 
Contractor shall request and obtain prior written approval from the City prior to the initiation of any 
specific task not included in the scope of Services or if the Services are to be modified in any way. 

 
2. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period of three (3) years 

commencing January 1, 2015, and expiring December 31, 2017, unless terminated sooner pursuant 
to Section 10 herein. 

 
3. Ownership and Use of Documents. All documents, drawings, specifications, computer files, 

photographs, calculations, models, maps, and any other materials produced by the Contractor in 
connection with the Services rendered under this Agreement shall be the property of the City 
whether the Service for which they are made is executed or not. 

 
4. Independent Contractor. The Contractor is and shall be at all times during the term of this 

Agreement an independent contractor and not an employee of the City. Any and all employees of 
the Contractor or other persons while engaged in the performance of any work or Services required 
of the Contractor under this Agreement shall be considered to be employees of the Contractor only 
and not employees of the City.  The Contractor and City agree to the following rights consistent with 
an independent contractor relationship: 

 
4.1. The Contractor has the sole right to control and direct the means, manner and method by 

which the services required by this Agreement will be performed. 
 

4.2. The Contractor will furnish all equipment and materials used to provide the Services required 
by this Agreement. 

 

ATTACHMENT 1

46 of 167



Agreement for Services 
Between the City of Covington and Wilson Fleet Services 
Page 2 of 9 
 

4.3. The Contractor or Contractor's employees or contract personnel shall perform the Services 
required by this Agreement; the City shall not hire or supervise any assistants to help the 
Contractor. 

 
4.4. Neither the Contractor nor the Contractor's employees or contract personnel shall receive 

any training from the City in the skills necessary to perform the services required by this 
Agreement. 

 
4.5. The City shall not require the Contractor or the Contractor's employees or contract personnel 

to devote full time to performing the services required by this Agreement. 
 

4.6. The Contractor acknowledges that it is responsible for the payment of all charges and taxes 
applicable to the Services performed under this Agreement, and the Contractor agrees to 
comply with all applicable laws regarding the reporting of income, maintenance of insurance 
and records, and all other requirements and obligations imposed as a result of the 
Contractor’s status as an independent contractor.  If the City is assessed, liable, or 
responsible in any manner for such charges or taxes, the Contractor agrees to hold the City 
harmless from such costs, including attorney's fees. 

 
4.7. The Contractor shall provide at its sole expense all materials, office space, and other 

necessities to perform its duties under this Agreement, unless otherwise specified in writing. 
 

4.8. The Contractor, at its expense, shall obtain and keep in force any and all necessary licenses 
and permits to perform the work provided for herein.   

 
4.9. The Contractor understands that neither the Contractor nor the Contractor's employees or 

contract personnel are eligible to participate in any employee pension, health, vacation pay, 
sick pay, or other fringe benefit plan of the City. The City shall not obtain workers' 
compensation insurance on behalf of the Contractor or the Contractor's employees. The City 
shall make no state or federal unemployment compensation payments on behalf of the 
Contractor or the Contractor's employees or contract personnel. The Contractor will not be 
entitled to these benefits in connection with work performed under this Agreement. The City 
shall not provide any insurance coverage of any kind for the Contractor or the Contractor's 
employees or contract personnel.  The Contractor agrees to maintain adequate insurance to 
cover any negligent acts committed by the Contractor or the Contractor's employees or 
agents while performing the Services under this Agreement. 

 
5. Indemnification.  

 
5.1. The Contractor agrees to indemnify the City from any claims, damages, losses, and costs, 

including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees and litigation costs, arising out of claims by third 
parties for property damage and bodily injury, including death, caused by the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the Contractor, the Contractor’s employees, affiliated corporations, 
officers, and lower tier subcontractors in connection with the performance of this 
Agreement, either solely or in combination with the negligence or willful misconduct of third 
parties. 

 

47 of 167



Agreement for Services 
Between the City of Covington and Wilson Fleet Services 
Page 3 of 9 
 

5.2. The City agrees to indemnify the Contractor from any claims, damages, losses, and costs, 
including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees and litigation costs, arising out of claims by third 
parties for property damage and bodily injury, including death, caused by the negligence or 
willful misconduct of the City, the City’s employees, or agents in connection with this 
Agreement, either solely or in combination with the negligence or willful misconduct of third 
parties. 

 
5.3. If negligence or willful misconduct of both the Contractor and the City (or a person identified 

above for whom each is liable) is a cause of such damage or injury, the loss, cost, or expense 
shall be shared between the Contractor and the City in proportion to their relative degrees of 
negligence or willful misconduct and the right of indemnity shall apply for such proportion. 

 
5.4. The Contractor hereby waives its immunity under Title 51 of the Revised Code of Washington 

for claims of any type brought by any Contractor agent or employee against the City. This 
waiver is specifically negotiated by the parties and a portion of the City’s payment hereunder 
is expressly made the consideration for this waiver. 

 
6. Record Keeping and Reporting. 

 
6.1. The Contractor shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property, financial, 

and programmatic records which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs 
incurred in the performance of this Agreement and other such records as may be deemed 
necessary by the City to ensure the performance of this Agreement. These records shall be 
maintained for a period of seven (7) years after termination hereof unless permission to 
destroy them is granted by the office of the archivist in accordance with RCW Chapter 40.14 
and by the City. 

 
6.2. When reports are required to be submitted to the City pursuant to this Agreement, the 

Contractor shall provide to the City a printed copy and an electronic version. Said electronic 
version shall be submitted to the City in an electronic format compatible with PC software 
programs in current use by the City (Microsoft Word, Microsoft Excel, Microsoft Access, 
Microsoft PowerPoint, Microsoft Publisher, Visio, AutoCAD, Adobe Acrobat). 

 
7. Audits and Inspections. The records and documents with respect to all matters covered by this 

Agreement shall be subject at all times to inspection, review, or audit by law during the 
performance of this Agreement. The Contractor shall permit the City, state, and federal agencies, 
from time to time as the City deems necessary or as required by state, local, or federal law or 
regulation, to inspect and audit at any and all reasonable times all pertinent books and records of 
the Contractor and any other person or entity which has performed work in connection with or 
related to the Contractor's Services under this Agreement to verify the accuracy of accounting 
records. Upon the City’s request, the Contractor shall also supply the City with, or shall permit the 
City to make, a copy of any books and records and any portion thereof pertaining to work under this 
Agreement. The Contractor shall ensure that such inspection, audit, and copying right of the City is a 
condition of any contract, agreement, or other arrangement under which any other person or entity 
is permitted to perform work in connection with or related to the Contractor's Services under this 
Agreement. 

 

48 of 167



Agreement for Services 
Between the City of Covington and Wilson Fleet Services 
Page 4 of 9 
 

8. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time upon written notification to 
the other. Upon termination, any proceeds or payments owed to either party for Services rendered 
prior to termination shall be invoiced within thirty (30) days of the date of termination and payment 
on said invoice shall be paid within thirty (30) days of the invoice date.   

 
9. Discrimination Prohibited. The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee, applicant for 

employment, or any person seeking the services of the Contractor to be provided under this 
Agreement on the basis of race, creed, color, national origin, families with children, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, marital status, age, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical 
disability or the use of a trained dog guide or service animal by a disabled person. 

 
10. Conflict of Interest. 

 
10.1. Governmental. No officer, employee, or agent of the City who exercises any function or 

responsibilities in connection with the approval of, planning, and carrying out of the Services 
to which this Agreement pertains, nor any member of the immediate family of any such 
officer, employee, or agent, shall have any personal financial interest, direct or indirect, in 
this Agreement, either in fact or in appearance, unless such interest is a remote interest as 
defined pursuant to RCW 42.23.040.   
 

10.2. Contractor. The Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and City conflict of interest 
laws, statutes, regulations, and policies as they shall apply to all parties and beneficiaries 
under this Agreement, as well as to officers, employees, or agents of the City.  The Contractor 
represents that the Contractor presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, 
direct or indirect, in fact or in appearance, which would conflict in any manner or degree with 
the performance of the Contractor's Services and obligations hereunder. The Contractor also 
agrees that its violation of the conflict of interest provisions of this Agreement shall 
constitute a material breach of this Agreement subjecting the Agreement to termination.  
The Contractor has a continuing obligation to search and report any actual or potential 
conflicts of interest during the course of performing the Services under this Agreement. 

 
10.3. Contractor Employees. The Contractor further covenants that, with respect to its 

performance of this Agreement, no person having any interest, direct or indirect, in fact or in 
appearance, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the 
Contractor's services and obligations hereunder, shall be employed to perform or provide 
services under this Agreement. The Contractor further covenants that it will implement and 
enforce requirements that its employees, with respect to this Agreement or the activities 
assisted by or through this Agreement, (a) will not use their position for personal gain, (b) will 
not engage in activities that directly or indirectly, in fact or in appearance, conflict with in any 
manner or degree, the performance of the Contractor's Services and obligations hereunder, 
(c) will not have or obtain, directly or indirectly, a pecuniary interest, either for himself or 
herself or for those with whom he or she may have business ties or immediate family ties, or 
(e) will not benefit directly or indirectly, in fact or in appearance, either for himself or those 
with whom he or she may have business ties, and (f) will not accept or engage in outside 
employment that would conflict directly or indirectly, in fact or in appearance, with his or her 
responsibilities under this Agreement.  
 

49 of 167



Agreement for Services 
Between the City of Covington and Wilson Fleet Services 
Page 5 of 9 
 

11. Assignment and Subcontract. The Contractor may not assign this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of the City. 

 
12. Amendments. The parties may amend this Agreement only upon the mutual written agreement of 

the parties. 
 

13. Notices. Notices to the City shall be sent to the following address: 
 

Ross Junkin 
City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st St. Suite 100 
Covington, WA  98042 
Telephone:  (253) 638-1431 

 
Notices to the Contractor shall be sent to the following address: 

 
Wilson Fleet Services 
1200 West Division 
Mount Vernon, WA  98273 
Telephone number: (360) 424-7459 

  
The point of contact for the Contractor or the person responsible for Services is: 

Name:  Jon Klump 
Telephone Number: (360) 442-6181  
Fax Number: (360) 424-3389 
E-mail: jklump@wilsonfleet.com 

 
14. State of Washington Requirements. The Contractor agrees to register and obtain any State of 

Washington business licenses, Department of Revenue account, and/or unified business identifier 
number as required by RCW 50.04.140 and 51.08.195 prior to performing any work pursuant to this 
Agreement. 
 

15. Applicable Law; Venue; Attorney's Fees. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. In the event any suit, arbitration, or other 
proceeding is instituted to enforce any term of this Agreement, the parties specifically understand 
and agree that venue shall be exclusively in King County, Washington. The prevailing party in any 
such action shall be entitled to its attorneys’ fees and costs of suit. 

 
16. No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall be for the sole benefit of the parties hereto and 

nothing contained herein shall create a contractual relationship with, or create a cause of action in 
favor of, a third party against either party hereto. 

 
17. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the parties hereto and 

no other Agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, shall be 
deemed to exist or bind any of the parties hereto.  

 
18. Severability. If any term of this Agreement is held to be illegal, void, or unenforceable for any 

reason, in full or in part, such holding shall not affect the validity and enforceability of any remaining 

50 of 167



Agreement for Services 
Between the City of Covington and Wilson Fleet Services 
Page 6 of 9 
 

provisions of this Agreement and said remaining provisions shall be deemed to be in full force and 
effect.  

 
19. No Waiver.  The waiver by any party of a breach or violation of any term of this Agreement by the 

other party shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach. 
 

20. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are intended solely for convenience of reference and 
shall be given no effect in the interpretation of this Agreement.   
 

 
 
DATED this _____ day of December, 2014. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON                       WILSON FLEET SERVICES 
 
________________________________                _______________________________________ 
(Signature)     (Signature) 
 
Name___________________________  Name: _________________________________ 
      
Title:                                                  _____               Title:       
 
Date:      Date:       
 
 

  

51 of 167



Agreement for Services 
Between the City of Covington and Wilson Fleet Services 
Page 7 of 9 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Scope and Terms of Services—Equipment Purchases 

 
1. Equipment Purchases. Pursuant to RCW 39.30.045, the City may engage the Contractor to purchase 

used trucks, cars, and heavy and light duty equipment (“Equipment”) for the City upon the City’s 
request and pursuant to the City’s specifications and budget for the desired Equipment purchase. 

 
2. Prices. The Contractor’s prices for Equipment, as mandated by RCW 39.30.045, must be competitive 

with available market sectors. Equipment prices paid by the City will be as obtained by the 
Contractor at auction sales and pursuant to the City’s specified budget. 

 
3. Cancellation. The City may cancel its order for any piece of Equipment upon at least thirty (30) days’ 

written notice to the Contractor prior to the Contractor’s auction purchase of such Equipment.  
 

4. Inspection/Defects/Acceptance. The Contractor will inspect and correct any defects in the 
Equipment before delivering the Equipment to the City. The City may also inspect, or cause to be 
inspected by a mechanic of its choice, the Equipment, and, if the City notifies the Contractor of any 
defects within five (5) days of delivery to the City, the Contractor shall either rectify the defects 
within thirty (30) days of such notice or shall reimburse the City’s costs of rectifying the defects, at 
the Contractor’s sole option. If no defects are noted by the City, the City shall accept the Equipment 
within five (5) days of delivery to the City. 

 
5. Delivery:  The Contractor shall deliver purchased Equipment to the City at: 

 
 City of Covington Maintenance Shop 

17852 SE 256th Street 
Covington, Washington 98042 
Telephone:  (253) 480-2471 

 
6. Auction Sales Receipt. The Contractor shall provide the City with the auction sales receipt for each 

piece of Equipment purchased on behalf of the City. 
 

7. Bill of Sale. The Contractor shall provide the City with a Bill of Sale and a legally valid title for each 
piece of Equipment purchased by the City. The Bill of Sale shall include, as applicable, the vehicle 
identification number (VIN); the year, make, and model of the Equipment; the odometer reading; a 
description of the Equipment; the name, address, and signature of the buyer; and the seller’s name, 
address, and signature.  
 

8. Title/Risk of Loss. Title and risk of loss or damage to all Equipment shall be the responsibility of the 
Contractor until the Equipment is accepted by the City, unless loss or damage results from the sole 
negligence of the City. If applicable, the Contractor shall warrant that title to the Equipment is good 
and marketable and without liens or encumbrances. 

 
9. Warranty. The Contractor will provide the City, at a minimum, with a one (1) year standard warranty 

for each piece of Equipment purchased by the City. 
 
 
  

52 of 167



Agreement for Services 
Between the City of Covington and Wilson Fleet Services 
Page 8 of 9 
 

EXHIBIT B 
Scope and Terms of Services—Consignment Services 

 
1. Consignment Services. The Contractor agrees to consign motor vehicles, equipment, and surplus 

property of the City at auction (the “Auction Item(s)”) on the City’s behalf. The following shall be 
included as part of the Contractor’s performance of said consignment service: 

 
1.1. De-identify all Auction Items prior to being photographed and posted online. 
1.2. Photography of Auction Items, auction site design, and web hosting. 
1.3. Research actual cash value (ACV) of an Auction Item and report to the City. 
1.4. Determine the best partner auction for the City’s Auction Items. 
1.5. Set the auction reserve for each Auction Item, with the City’s approval. 
1.6. List Auction Item on national auction sale site. 
1.7. Manage all communication between the City, auction, and bidders. 
1.8. Arrange for transport of Auction Items from the City to the auction site. 

 
2. Auction Items. 

 
2.1. Vehicle Registration. Any motor vehicle consigned by the City shall remain registered in the 

name of the City until sold. 
 

2.2. Odometer Statement. For consigned motor vehicles, the City agrees to provide a duly 
executed odometer statement on or before the first day of the auction of said vehicle and to 
accept sole responsibility for the accuracy or inaccuracy of such statement. 

 
2.3. Title Warranty. The City warrants that it is the sole and only owner of all consigned Auction 

Items. The City warrants that it has the full right and authority to sell all consign the Auction 
Items. The City agrees to provide the Contractor with good, clear, and transferable title and 
to correct at the City’s expense any title defects and to pay any expenses associated with 
providing the buyer with good, clear, and transferable title according to the state of where 
the buyer seeks to register the purchased Auction Item. 

 
2.4. Alterations/Repairs/Reconditioning. The Contractor or partner auction will not carry out any 

alterations, repairs, servicing, or reconditioning of an Auction Item unless the City consents in 
writing. Any written agreement will specify the charges for which the City is responsible and 
said charges shall be included in the final invoices for fees from the Contractor. 

 
3. Auction Term. 

 
3.1. Exclusive Right to Sell. The Contractor will have the exclusive right to sell the City’s consigned 

Auction Items for the term of this Agreement. The Contractor shall use its best efforts to sell 
the City’s consigned Auction Items. The City understands that neither the Contractor nor a 
partner auction in no way warrants or guarantees the sale of any consigned Auction Items. 

 
3.2. Reserve Price. The reserve price of an Auction Item may not be increased at any time. The 

City shall have the right to reduce the reserve price of an Auction Item at any time prior to 
the auction; the reserve price shall not be reduced without the City’s approval. When the 
Auction Item is sold with a reserve price the auctioneers may bid on the City’s behalf up to 

53 of 167



Agreement for Services 
Between the City of Covington and Wilson Fleet Services 
Page 9 of 9 
 

the reserve price. With the City’s approval the Auction Item may be sold under the reserve 
price. In the event that the Contractor cannot contact the City for authorization to sell an 
Auction Item under the reserve price, the Contractor will not sell the Auction Item for less 
than ninety percent (90%) of the reserved price.  

 
3.3. Unsold Auction Items. The Contractor will relist and register all unsold Auction Items in the 

following weeks’ sale. After each unsuccessful sale, the Contractor will notify the City and 
analyze the current market conditions. After two (2) unsuccessful sales the City will be 
advised to lower its reserve price.  

 
3.4. Returns. All Auction Items are sold AS-IS with no arbitration. 

 
3.5. Sales Off the Block. The City may direct the Contractor to sell any Auction Items pursuant to 

local or state statutes. 
 

3.6. Bill of Sale. Upon the sale of an Auction Item, the Contractor will provide the City with gross 
and net sales amounts. These figures will accompany a Bill of Sale provided to the City. 

 
4. Proceeds and Payment. 

 
4.1. Auction Proceeds. The Contractor shall promptly deliver to the City all proceeds from the 

sale of the City’s Auction Items (the “Auction Proceeds”). The Contractor shall only deduct 
the specific auction fees from the City’s Auction Proceeds. All checks for Auction Proceeds 
will be tendered to the City on behalf of the partner auction.  
 

4.2. Contractor Payment. The Contractor shall directly invoice the City for all additional auction 
services provided by either the partner auction or the Contractor, including service fees and 
cleaning, de-commissioning, and de-identifying fees for the consignment of the City’s Auction 
Items. The Contractor shall provide said fees to the City for review and approval before the 
Contractor consigns the City’s Auction Items. In most cases transportation of large or oversize 
Auction Items will be billed by the hour and the Contractor will endeavor to estimate said 
cost to the closest dollar amount but will not be held responsible for any delays that may 
increase the original estimate. The City shall submit payment to the Contractor within thirty 
(30) days of receipt of said invoice.  

 
5. General Terms.  

 
5.1. Confidentiality. The Contractor and the City agree to the confidentiality of mutual 

information and may release such information only with written consent of each party, or as 
required by law. 

 
5.2. Liability. The City acknowledges that the Contractor assumes no liability for any loss, theft, or 

damage of any kind to the Auction Items, their contents or components. All risk of loss or 
damage to or resulting from the transportation or storage of Auction Items while in the 
possession or control of the Contractor or a partner auction shall remain with the City, except 
for loss or damage due to the negligence or intentional acts of the Contractor or partner 
auction.  

 

54 of 167



 Consent Agenda Item C-6 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  December 9, 2014 
 
SUBJECT

 

:   AUTHORIZE THE INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES WITH OLYMPIC ENVIRONMENTAL 
RESOURCES RELATING TO RECYCLING COLLECTION EVENTS FOR 
2015. 

RECOMMENDED BY
 

:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 

ATTACHMENT(S)
1.  Agreement for Services with Olympic Environmental Resources 

: 

 
PREPARED BY
 

:  Shellie Bates, Programs Supervisor/Public Works 

The City applied for and received three grants to implement recycling collection events in 2015.  
Staff selected Olympic Environmental Resources (OER) as the most qualified to perform the 
work.  This proposed contract recognizes the expanded scope of work to include the additional 
King County funds and the addition of adjacent unincorporated King County residents in the 
2015 Recycling Collection Events.  The agreement is from January 1, 2015 through December 
31, 2015.  This contract is an integral part of the City of Covington’s recycling element of the 
overall solid waste management program because the City of Covington does not have adequate 
staffing or expertise to implement the programs without outside assistance. 

EXPLANATION:  

 
ALTERNATIVES
Choose not to authorize the Interim City Manager to enter into the agreement and thereby 
decline to implement the recycling collection events with grants from King County and 
Department of Ecology. 

:   

 
FISCAL IMPACT
There is no net cost to the City of Covington.  By combining funds from three grants, the City is 
able to provide the recycling programs by contracting with a private company for provision of 
the services with 100% of the costs, including city staff time, eligible for reimbursement from 
the various granting agencies. 

:   

 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION: ___Ordinance            Resolution       X   
 

Motion     ___Other 

Councilmember _________________ moves, Councilmember _____________ 
seconds, to authorize the Interim City Manager to execute an Agreement for 
Services with Olympic Environmental Resources relating to recycling 
collection events for 2015.  

 
REVIEWED BY:  Interim City Manager, City Attorney, Deputy Finance Director 

55 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 1 
Updated 4-07-09 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES is entered into this 9th day of December, 2014, by 
and between the City of Covington (“City”), a Washington municipal corporation, and Olympic 
Environmental Resources (“Consultant”), a corporation. 
 
 RECITALS: 
 
 A. The City seeks the temporary services of a skilled independent contractor capable 
of working without direct supervision to perform the coordination of the City of Covington 
recycling events on behalf of the citizens of Covington; and 
 
 B. The Consultant has the requisite skill and experience necessary to provide said 
services; and 
 
 C. The City has selected the Consultant to perform said services; and 
 
 D. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the terms and conditions under 
which the Consultant will perform said services. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements set forth 
herein, the City and the Consultant do hereby agree as follows: 
 
 1. Engagement.  The City, acting pursuant to its vested authority, does hereby 
engage the Consultant and the Consultant does hereby agree to perform on behalf of the City the 
services more particularly described herein.   
 
 2. Scope of Services.  Upon written authorization from the City to proceed, the 
Consultant shall perform the services described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference (“Services”), in a manner consistent with the accepted practices for 
similar services, performed to the City’s satisfaction, within the time period prescribed by the 
City and pursuant to the direction of the City Manager or his or her designee.  In performing the 
Services, the Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations, 
including, without limitation, all City codes, ordinances, resolutions, standards and policies, as 
now existing or hereafter adopted or amended, that may be applicable to its performance.  To the 
extent required by law, the Contractor and all subcontractors shall pay no less than the prevailing 
wage rate to employees performing work under this contract and shall submit a “Statement of 
Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages” and an “Affidavit of Wages Paid” in compliance with RCW 
39.12. 
 
 3. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period 
commencing upon execution and ending upon the completion of the Services, but in any event 
no later than December 31, 2015 (“Term”), unless earlier terminated under the provisions of this 
Agreement.  This Agreement may be extended for additional periods of time upon the mutual 
written agreement of the City and the Consultant.  Time is of the essence in each and every term 
of this Agreement.  
 

ATTACHMENT 1

56 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 2 
Updated 4-07-09 

4. Compensation and Method of Payment.   
 
  4.1 Compensation.  In consideration of the Consultant performing the 
Services, the City agrees to pay the Consultant an amount not to exceed $52,752. 
 
  4.2. Method of Payment.  Payment by the City for the Services will only be 
made after the Services have been satisfactorily performed, a voucher or invoice is submitted in a 
form acceptable to the City, and the same is approved by the appropriate City representative.  
Payment shall be made no later than ten days after City Council approval of the invoiced 
amount.   
 
  4.3 First Invoice.  Prior to or along with the first invoice submitted, the 
Consultant shall return to the City a completed “Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and 
Certification”, also known as IRS form W-9. 
 
  4.4 Consultant Responsible for Taxes.  The Consultant shall be solely 
responsible for the payment of any taxes imposed by any lawful jurisdiction as a result of the 
performance and payment of this Agreement. 
 
 5. Warranty.  The Consultant warrants that it has the requisite training, skill and 
experience necessary to provide the Services and is appropriately accredited and licensed by all 
applicable agencies and governmental entities, including but not limited to being registered to do 
business in the City of Covington by obtaining a City of Covington business license.   The 
Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical adequacy and accuracy, 
timely completion and coordination of all plans, designs, drawings, specifications, reports and 
other services prepared or performed pursuant to this Agreement.  The Consultant shall perform 
its work in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement and pursuant to the standards of 
professional care, skill, diligence and competence as are normally exercised by other members 
and/or firms of the profession in good standing working under the same or similar conditions and 
circumstances and in similar communities as the services provided by the Consultant under this 
Agreement.  The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional standards, performance and 
actions of all persons and firms performing work pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of 
Consultant.  The City shall also have the right to deduct from payments to the Consultant any 
costs or damages incurred by the City, or which may be incurred by the City, as a result of the 
Consultant’s failure to comply with the requirements of the Agreement or failure to meet the 
professional standard of care and skill, or both. The City’s approval of plans, drawings, designs, 
specifications, reports and other products of the professional services rendered hereunder shall 
not in any way relieve the Consultant of responsibility for the technical adequacy or accuracy 
thereof.  Neither the City’s review, approval, acceptance of, and/or payment for any services 
shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of 
action arising out of the performance of this Agreement.   
 

6. Ownership and Use of Documents.  Any and all original and copies of records, 
reports, designs, files, documents, drawings, specifications, data or information, regardless of 
form or format, and all other materials prepared or produced by the Consultant in connection 
with the Services shall be the property of the City whether the project for which they were 
created is executed or not. At the termination or cancellation of this Agreement, any and all such 
records or information remaining in the possession of the Consultant shall be delivered to the 
City.  No confidential information obtained or created by Consultant shall be disclosed to any 
person or party other than the City without the City’s prior written consent. 
 

57 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 3 
Updated 4-07-09 

 7. Independent Contractor.  It is the intention and understanding of the City and the 
Consultant that the Consultant shall be an independent contractor and that the City shall be 
neither liable nor obligated to pay the Consultant sick leave, vacation pay or any other benefit of 
employment.  The Consultant shall pay all income and other taxes due.  Industrial or any other 
insurance that is purchased for the benefit of the City, regardless of whether such may provide a 
secondary or incidental benefit to the Consultant, shall not be deemed to convert this Agreement 
to an employment contract.  The Consultant will be solely responsible for its acts and for the acts 
of its agents, employees, sub consultants or representatives during the performance of this 
Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create the relation of employer 
and employee or principal and agent between the parties hereto.  The Consultant shall have the 
sole judgment of the means, mode or manner of the actual performance of this Agreement.  The 
Consultant, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for carrying out and 
accomplishing this Agreement. 
 
 8. Indemnification.  To the maximum extent permitted by law, Consultant shall 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City and all of its officials, employees, principals and 
agents from all claims, demands, suits, actions, and liability of any kind, including injuries to 
persons or damages to property, which arise out of, are connected with, or are due to any errors, 
omissions or negligent acts of Consultant, its contractor, and/or employees, agents, volunteers or 
representatives in performance of this Agreement; provided, however, that if (and only if) the 
provisions of RCW 4.24.115 apply to the work and services under this Agreement and any such 
damages and injuries to persons or property are caused by or result from the concurrent 
negligence of Consultant, its contractor or employees, agents, volunteers or representatives and 
the City or its employees, agents, or representatives, the indemnification applies only to the 
extent of the negligence of Consultant, its contractor or employees, volunteers, agents, or 
representatives.  In the event of any such claims, demands, suits, actions, and lawsuits, 
Consultant shall assume all costs of defense thereof, including administrative and legal fees 
incurred by the City, and of all resulting judgments that may be obtained against the City or any 
of its officers, principals, agents, or employees.  If resulting there from, any lien is placed upon 
property of the City or any of its officers, principals, agents, or employees, Consultant shall at 
once cause the same to be dissolved and discharged by giving bond or otherwise.  Consultant 
specifically assumes potential liability for actions brought by Consultant’s own employees 
against the City and for that purpose Consultant specifically waives, as respects the City only, 
any immunity under the Worker's Compensation Act, RCW Title 51; and Consultant recognizes 
that this waiver was the subject of mutual negotiation and specifically entered into pursuant to 
the provision of RCW 4.24.115, if applicable. In the event either party incurs attorney's fees, 
costs or other legal expenses to enforce the provisions of this section against the other party, all 
such fees, costs and expenses shall be recoverable by the prevailing party. 
 
 The provisions of this Section shall survive any expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 
 

9. Insurance.  The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of work hereunder by the Consultant, its 
agents, representatives or employees. Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required by the 
agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage provided 
by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in 
equity. The Consultant shall at a minimum obtain and carry the following insurance in such 
forms and with such carriers who have a rating satisfactory to the City:  
 

58 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 4 
Updated 4-07-09 

9.1 Workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance in amounts 
sufficient pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington;  

 
9.2 Commercial general liability insurance covering liability arising from 

premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury and advertising injury and 
written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 with combined single limits of liability not 
less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate for bodily injury, 
including personal injury or death, products liability and property damage.  

 
9.3 Automobile liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and 

leased vehicles and written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a 
substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage with combined single limits of 
liability not less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury, including personal injury 
or death and property damage.  If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to provide 
contractual liability coverage.   

 
9.4 Professional liability insurance covering any negligent professional acts, 

errors or omissions for which the Consultant is legally responsible and with combined 
single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy 
aggregate limit for damages sustained by reason of or in the course of operation under 
this Agreement. 

 
The City shall be named as additional insured on all such insurance policies, with the 

exception of professional liability and workers' compensation coverage(s) if the Consultant 
participates in a state-run workers’ comp program.  The Consultant shall provide original 
certificates of insurance and a copy of the amendatory endorsement, concurrent with the 
execution of this Agreement, evidencing such coverage and, at City's request, furnish the City 
with copies of all insurance policies and with evidence of payment of premiums or fees of such 
policies.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than 
A:VII. All insurance policies shall contain a clause of endorsement providing that they may not 
be terminated or materially amended during the Term of this Agreement, except after thirty (30) 
days prior written notice to the City.  If the Consultant's insurance policies are "claims made," 
the Consultant shall be required to maintain tail coverage for a minimum period of three (3) 
years from the date this Agreement is actually terminated or upon project completion and 
acceptance by the City.  The Consultant's failure to maintain such insurance policies shall be 
grounds for the City's immediate termination of this Agreement. 
 

The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement with respect to any event occurring prior to such expiration or termination. 
 

10. Books and Records.  The Consultant agrees to maintain books, records, and 
documents which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the 
performance of the Services and maintain such accounting procedures and practices as may be 
deemed necessary by the City to assure proper accounting of all funds paid pursuant to this 
Agreement.  These records shall be subject, at all reasonable times, to inspection, review or audit 
by the City, its authorized representative, the State Auditor, or other governmental officials 
authorized by law to monitor this Agreement. 
 

59 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 5 
Updated 4-07-09 

 11. Termination.   
 
  11.1 Prior to the expiration of the Term, this Agreement may be terminated 
immediately, with or without cause, by the City.  In the event of termination or suspension, all 
finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, worksheets, models, reports or other materials 
prepared by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be submitted to the City within five 
days of the date of termination. 
 
  11.2 In the event this Agreement is terminated or suspended, the Consultant 
shall be entitled to payment for all services satisfactorily performed and reimbursable expenses 
incurred to the date of termination. 
 
  11.3 This provision shall not prevent the City from seeking any legal remedies 
it may otherwise have for the violation, default, or nonperformance of any provision of this 
Agreement.  The remedies provided in this paragraph shall be in addition to any other remedy 
the City may have at law or in equity. 
 

12. Discrimination.  In all Consultant services, programs or activities, and all 
Consultant hiring and employment made possible by or resulting from this Agreement, there 
shall be no discrimination by the Consultant or by the Consultant's employees, agents, 
subcontractors or representatives against any person because of sex, age (except minimum age 
and retirement provisions), race, color, creed, national origin, marital status or the presence of 
any disability, including sensory, mental or physical handicaps, unless based upon a bona fide 
occupational qualification in relationship to hiring and employment.  This requirement shall 
apply, but not be limited to the following:  employment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The 
Consultant shall not violate any of the terms of Chapter 49.60 RCW, Title VII of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, the Americans With Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
or any other applicable federal, state or local law or regulation regarding non-discrimination. 
Any material violation of this provision shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement by 
the City and, in the case of the Consultant's breach, may result in ineligibility for further City 
agreements.   
 
 13. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Consultant shall not assign or transfer any 
interest in this Agreement or subcontract any portion of the services contemplated hereunder 
without the prior written consent of the City. 
 
 14. Conflict of Interest.  The Consultant represents to the City that it has no conflict 
of interest in performing any of the services described herein.  It is recognized that the 
Consultant may or will be performing services during the Term for other parties; provided, 
however that such performance of other services shall not conflict with or interfere with the 
Consultant’s ability to perform the Services.  In the event that the Consultant is asked to perform 
services for a project with which it may have a conflict, the Consultant shall immediately 
disclose such potential conflict to the City.  The Consultant agrees to resolve any actual conflicts 
of interest in favor of the City. 
 

15. Confidentiality.  All information regarding the City obtained by the Consultant 
and designated by the City as confidential in the performance of this Agreement shall be 
considered confidential.  Breach of confidentiality by the Consultant shall be grounds for 
immediate termination of this Agreement. 

  

60 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 6 
Updated 4-07-09 

 16. Non-appropriation of Funds.  If sufficient funds are not appropriated or allocated 
for payment under this Agreement for any future fiscal period, the City will so notify the 
Consultant and shall not be obligated to make payments for services or amounts incurred after 
the end of the City’s current fiscal period.  This Agreement shall terminate upon the completion 
of all remaining services for which funds are allocated.  No penalty or expense shall accrue to the 
City in the event that the terms of this provision are effectuated. 
 
 17. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the exhibits attached hereto, 
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this 
Agreement.  There are no promises, terms, conditions or obligations other than those contained 
herein, and this Agreement shall supersede all previous communications, negotiations, 
representations or agreements, either verbal or written, between the parties hereto concerning the 
subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
 18. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by writing 
signed by all parties hereto.   
 
 19. No Waiver.  Failure or delay of the City to declare any breach or default 
immediately upon occurrence shall not waive such breach or default.  Failure of the City to 
declare one breach or default does not act as a waiver of the City's right to declare another breach 
or default. 
 
 20. Successors.  Subject to the provisions of paragraph 13 above, this Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties, their respective heirs, executors, 
administrators, personal representatives, successors and assigns. 
 
 21. Severability.  Each and every provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be 
severable.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement shall 
not affect the other provisions hereof, and the Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if 
such invalid or unenforceable provision were not a part of this Agreement.  
 
 22. Notices.  All notices, payments and other communications hereunder shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered or mailed, by first 
class or certified mail, with postage prepaid, 
 
  22.1 if to the Consultant, to: 

Paul Devine 
   Olympic Environmental Resources 
   4715 SW Walker Street 
   Seattle, WA  98116 
 
or to such other person or place as the Consultant shall furnish to the City in writing; and 
 

22.2 if to the City, to: 

Shellie Bates 
City of Covington 

   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite100 
   Covington, WA  98042 
 
or to such other person or place as the City shall furnish to the Consultant in writing. 

61 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 7 
Updated 4-07-09 

 
Notices and payments shall be deemed given upon personal delivery or, if mailed, upon 

the earlier of actual receipt or three (3) business days after the date of mailing. 
 
 23. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Washington. 
 
 24. Venue.  The venue for any cause of action arising out of this Agreement shall be 
King County, Washington. 
 
 25. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any default under this Agreement, the 
substantially defaulting party agrees to pay the substantially non-defaulting party’s reasonable 
expenses which the latter incurs by reason thereof, including but not limited to reasonable 
attorney’s fees, whether with respect to the investigation of such default or the determination of 
the application or the pursuit of remedies with respect thereto, or in legal proceedings, or 
otherwise.  The term “legal proceedings” as used in this paragraph shall include all litigation, 
arbitration, administrative, bankruptcy and judicial proceedings, including appeals therefrom. 
 
 26. Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are intended solely for convenience of 
reference and shall be given no effect in the interpretation of this Agreement.   
 
 27. Survival of Representations.  The representations and warranties of the City and 
the Consultant contained hereto shall survive indefinitely. 
 
 28. Independent Counsel.  The Consultant acknowledges that the drafter of this 
Agreement is the City’s legal representative to whom the Consultant does not look to for any 
legal counseling or legal advice with regard to this transaction.  The Consultant further 
acknowledges that it has been advised to consult with independent legal counsel and has had an 
opportunity to do so.  By signing this Agreement, the Consultant acknowledges that it has 
consulted with independent legal counsel of its choice or has knowingly waived the right to do 
so.  There shall be no presumption of draftsmanship in favor of or implied against any party 
hereto. 
 

29. Authority.  Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City and 
the Consultant represents and warrants that such individuals are duly authorized to execute and 
deliver this Agreement on behalf of the Consultant or the City. 
 

62 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 8 
Updated 4-07-09 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year 
written above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager 
 
 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk    Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
 
OLYMPIC ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Paul Devine, General Manager 
 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF ____________) 
 
On this day personally appeared before me ______________________, to me known to be the 
_______________________ of Olympic Environmental Resources that executed the foregoing 
instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of 
said corporation, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that he/she was 
authorized to execute said instrument and that the seal affixed, if any, is the corporate seal of said 
corporation. 
 

GIVEN my hand and official seal this ______ day of ______________________, 2014. 
 

_____________________________________ 
_____________________________________ 
     (typed/printed name of notary) 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington. 
My commission expires__________________ 

 

63 of 167



EXHIBIT A 
 

Scope of Services 
 
This Scope of Work is intended to detail Olympic Environmental Resource’s (OER) 
services and responsibilities in implementing City of Covington Recycling Projects.  In 
2015, OER will implement two residential Recycling Collection Events, one Business 
Recycling Collection Event, and one or more Compost Bin Sales.  The proposed 
projects include: 
 
Residential Recycling Events 
The events are tentatively scheduled for spring (April, May) and fall (September, 
October) of 2015.  At one or all events the following materials will be collected and 
recycled:  used tires, used anti-freeze, used petroleum-based products, used oil filters, 
used motor oil, bulky yard waste (large material only), scrap wood, appliances (including 
refrigerators, freezers, household air conditioners, and other appliances), 
computer/electronic equipment, ferrous metals, nonferrous metals, textiles, reusable or 
recyclable household goods, porcelain toilets and sinks, propane tanks, and other 
materials whenever practical.  OER subcontracts out services to vendors who specialize 
in the recycling of specific materials.  User fees will apply to the collection of some 
materials.  In 2015, the Covington Recycling Collection Events will include area 
residents living in unincorporated King County. 
 
Business Recycling Event 
To address the situation that many Covington businesses have of keeping/storing 
recyclable materials, the OER will implement a Covington Recycling Business 
Collection Event.  The purpose will be to allow for the collection of recyclables that 
would otherwise not be collected.  Many small businesses do not generate enough of a 
particular material to retain a service provider, so they store the material.  Other 
businesses generate materials that there are not service providers readily available.  To 
help City businesses recycle more material, the OER will implement a one-day event to 
collect and recycle a variety of materials from Covington businesses.  The City will co-
host this event with the City of Maple Valley. 
 
Compost Bin Distribution 
The City will support recycling programs by distributing backyard compost bins to City 
residents.  OER will work to promote distribution of backyard compost bins and 
educational materials on grasscycling and backyard composting to residents.  City 
residents will be charged a user fee of $25 for each bin. 
 
OER wishes to involve the Covington staff at the level most comfortable for the City. 
OER will meet with the City of Covington staff at any time during the project for updates 
on activities or will pursue activities independently if desired by the City. 
 
The project budget will incorporate the City of Covington grant funds available from the 
Seattle-King County Health Department, King County Solid Waste Division, and the 
Washington State Department of Ecology.  Project grant funds total $52,752 in 2015 
and include all items that will be paid for directly by the City, including City staff time.  
The specific project activities to be carried out by OER are detailed in the grant scopes 

64 of 167



of work.  OER will cover project expenses as they arise, such as the costs of printing 
and vendor services.  OER will assist the City in requesting reimbursement for these 
costs from the King County Solid Waste Division, Seattle-King County Health 
Department, and the Washington State Department of Ecology. 
 
OER’s goal is to conduct events with very limited City staff time and no net City cost.  
However, there are a number of “official acts” necessary for the City to bring the 
program on line: 
 

• Sign and submit letters of intent. 
• Review and submit program scopes of work. 
• Sign necessary grant agreements. 
• Keep OER informed of any changes made to grant agreements. 
• Reimburse OER for staff time and expenses from grant funding. 

 
 

2015 Covington Recycling Grants 
 
The City of Covington is eligible and has applied for the following grants.  It is expected 
that no non-grant City funds will be expended on recycling projects in 2015.  The City 
has applied for the following: 
 
1) King County Local Hazardous Waste Management Plan Grant. 

2015 grant total - $9,381 
 
2) King County Waste Reduction and Recycling Grant Program. 

2015 grant total - $25,871 
 
3) Washington State Department of Ecology Coordinated Prevention Grant. 

2015 grant total - $17,500 (Coordinated by City of Maple Valley) 
 
TOTAL:  $52,752 

65 of 167



   Consent Agenda Item C-7 
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: December 9, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:   PROPOSED ORDINANCE ADOPTING A 2014 BUDGET AMENDMENT  
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Proposed ordinance with exhibits 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager 
 
EXPLANATION:  
It is the policy of the city and a requirement of the state auditor and state law to correctly report 
the budget at year end and account for all changes. A budget amendment is required under RCW 
35.33.121 if we’ve received unanticipated revenues, such as grant proceeds, that we intend to 
spend. 
 
After the November expenditure reports are completed and the financial reports are finalized, 
staff reviews the year end changes that have occurred in revenues, expenditures, fund balances, 
and operating transfers. If there are substantive changes that impact the original budget 
estimates, they are brought forward in the form of amendments to the original budget. This is an 
annual occurrence due to the changing nature of the budget.  
 
All funds are being amended to reflect the actual audited beginning fund balances.  The General 
Fund, Parks and Recreation Fund, Surface Water Management Fund, and Capital Investment 
Program Fund are being amended to reflect unanticipated grant proceeds and related 
expenditures.  In addition, the General Fund, Parks and Recreation Fund, Street Fund, 
Cumulative Reserve Fund, Real Estate Excise Tax Fund 1st Qtr, and Real Estate Excise Tax 2nd 
Qtr Fund are being amended to account for transfers between funds and related expenditures. 
 
The employee positions/salary range schedule is also being amended to reflect staffing changes 
that have occurred during the year.  The following positions have been added:  Deputy Finance 
Director, Athletics Specialist, Customer Service Specialist, and Referee. 
 
Staff recommends that this ordinance be adopted as presented, as it is a fair and accurate 
assessment of the anticipated year end revenues, expenditures, operating transfers and fund 
balances based on current relevant information.  
  
Failure to adopt the budget amendment as presented or to make changes could result in 
unfavorable audit recommendations and/or findings.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:  

1.) The Council could elect to postpone or deny adopting this ordinance.  
2.) The Council could make other amendments to the budget.  

 
 

66 of 167



FISCAL IMPACT: As noted above 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ___X__Ordinance  _____Resolution  _____Motion _____Other 

 
Council member _______________ moves, Council member 
____________________ seconds, to pass an Ordinance amending the 
2014 Budget by amending Ordinance 15-13. 

 
 

67 of 167



    
 

ORDINANCE NO.  15-14  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, 
AMENDING THE 2014 BUDGET BY AMENDING 
SECTION 2 AND 5 OF ORDINANCE NO. 15-13 

 
WHEREAS, the city passed Ordinance No. 15-13 on December 10, 2013, which 

approved the city’s budget for 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city wishes to adjust beginning estimated fund balances to audited fund 

balances; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city wishes to appropriate unanticipated grant proceeds; and  
 
WHEREAS, the city wishes to adjust transfers between funds;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 

WASHINGTON DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The amended budget for the City of Covington, Washington, for the year 2014 

is hereby adopted at the fund level in its final form and content, a true and correct copy of which 
is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
Section 2. Section 2 of Ordinance No. 15-13 is amended to read as follows: 
 

Estimated resources, including fund balances or working capital for each separate fund of 
the City of Covington and aggregate totals for all such funds combined, for the year 2014 
are set forth in summary form below, and are hereby appropriated for expenditure at the 
fund level during the year 2014 as set forth below: 

 
FUND AMOUNT 
General Fund $13,038,812  
Parks and Recreation Fund 2,435,983 
Development Services Fund 2,837,397 
Street Fund 1,357,836 
Surface Water Management Fund 9,717,644 
Capital Investment Program 4,637,313 
Local Improvement District 37,251 
LID Guaranty Fund 36,491 
Unemployment Reserve Fund 232,353 
Equipment Replacement Fund 808,271 
Cumulative Reserve Fund 1,400,671 

ATTACHMENT 1 

68 of 167



Contingency Fund 418,360 
Real Estate Excise Tax Fund 1st Qtr 269,906 
Real Estate Excise Tax Fund 2nd Qtr 269,214 
Long-Term Debt Service Fund 1,278,415 
Total All Funds $38,775,917  

 
Section 3.  Section 5 of Ordinance 15-13 is amended and includes the Amended 2014 

Salary Schedule for authorized positions and is attached hereto as Exhibit B.  
 

Section 4.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it is determined to 
be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this ordinance, and 
ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it, shall remain in force and effect. 

 
Section 5. This ordinance shall be in force and take effect five (5) days after its 

publication according to law. 
 
Adopted by the Council on this 9th day of December, 2014.  
 
 

      
 _______________________                                             

Mayor Margaret Harto 
     

PUBLISHED:  December 12, 2014 
 

EFFECTIVE:   December 17, 2014 
ATTESTED: 
 
       
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
Sara Springer, City Attorney  

 
 

69 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON
Proposed Budget Amendments

2014

2014 Budget Amendment Exhibit A.xlsx
 Amendments   12/3/2014

2014 Adopted Budget
2014 Proposed 

Amendment
2014 Amended 

Budget % Change
2014 Adopted 

Budget
2014 Proposed 

Amendment
2014 Amended 

Budget % Change

GENERAL FUND PARKS AND RECREATION FUND 

REVENUES REVENUES

Beginning Fund Balance 3,785,530$                  241,275$            4,026,805$                  106.4% Beginning Fund Balance 257,581$             43,897$                        301,478$            117.0%
Operating Revenues 8,934,516                    41,000                8,975,516                    100.5% Operating Revenues 1,317,301            128,484                        1,445,785           109.8%
Operating Transfers In 36,491                         -                          36,491                         100.0% Operating Transfers In 604,384               84,336                          688,720              114.0%

TOTAL RESOURCES 12,756,537$                282,275$            13,038,812$                102.2% TOTAL RESOURCES 2,179,266$          256,717$                      2,435,983$         111.8%

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenses 7,321,876$                  41,000$              7,362,876$                  100.6% Operating Expenses 1,861,619$          212,820$                      2,074,439$         111.4%
Operating Transfers Out 1,621,376                    119,936              1,741,312                    107.4% Operating Transfers Out 27,483                 -                                    27,483                100.0%
Ending Fund Balance 3,813,285                    121,339              3,934,624                    103.2% Ending Fund Balance 290,164               43,897                          334,061              115.1%

TOTAL USES 12,756,537$                282,275$            13,038,812$                102.2% TOTAL USES 2,179,266$          256,717$                      2,435,983$         111.8%

STREET FUND 

REVENUES REVENUES

Beginning Fund Balance 1,833,562$                  57,667$              1,891,229$                  103.1% Beginning Fund Balance 406,717$             61,149$                        467,866$            115.0%
Operating Revenues 946,168                       -                          946,168                       100.0% Operating Revenues 595,640               15,000                          610,640              102.5%
Operating Transfers In -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers In 279,330               -                                    279,330              100.0%

TOTAL RESOURCES 2,779,730$                  57,667$              2,837,397$                  102.1% TOTAL RESOURCES 1,281,687$          76,149$                        1,357,836$         105.9%

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenses 1,074,662$                  -$                        1,074,662$                  100.0% Operating Expenses 949,937$             -$                                  949,937$            100.0%
Operating Transfers Out -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers Out -                           15,000                          15,000                0.0%
Ending Fund Balance 1,705,068                    57,667                1,762,735                    103.4% Ending Fund Balance 331,750               61,149                          392,899              118.4%

TOTAL USES 2,779,730$                  57,667$              2,837,397$                  102.1% TOTAL USES 1,281,687$          76,149$                        1,357,836$         105.9%

SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT FUND CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM FUND 

REVENUES REVENUES

Beginning Fund Balance 7,737,294$                  45,401$              7,782,695$                  100.6% Beginning Fund Balance 1,650,869$          442,570$                      2,093,439$         126.8%
Operating Revenues 1,869,373                    65,576                1,934,949                    103.5% Operating Revenues 1,908,649            635,225                        2,543,874           133.3%
Operating Transfers In -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers In -                           -                                    -                         0.0%

TOTAL RESOURCES 9,606,667$                  110,977$            9,717,644$                  101.2% TOTAL RESOURCES 3,559,518$          1,077,795$                   4,637,313$         130.3%

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenses 1,966,018$                  65,576$              2,031,594$                  103.3% Operating Expenses 2,221,900$          635,225$                      2,857,125$         128.6%
Operating Transfers Out -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers Out 33,070                 -                                    33,070                100.0%
Ending Fund Balance 7,640,649                    45,401                7,686,050                    100.6% Ending Fund Balance 1,304,548            442,570                        1,747,118           133.9%

TOTAL USES 9,606,667$                  110,977$            9,717,644$                  101.2% TOTAL USES 3,559,518$          1,077,795$                   4,637,313$         130.3%

LID FUND LID GUARANTY FUND

REVENUES REVENUES

Beginning Fund Balance -$                                260$                   260$                            0.0% Beginning Fund Balance -$                         -$                                  -$                       0.0%
Operating Revenues 36,991                         -                          36,991                         100.0% Operating Revenues -                           -                                    -                         0.0%
Operating Transfers In -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers In 36,491                 -                                    36,491                100.0%

TOTAL RESOURCES 36,991$                       260$                   37,251$                       100.7% TOTAL RESOURCES 36,491$               -$                                  36,491$              100.0%

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenses 500$                            -$                        500$                            100.0% Operating Expenses -$                         -$                                  -$                       0.0%
Operating Transfers Out 36,491                         -                          36,491                         100.0% Operating Transfers Out 36,491                 -                                    36,491                100.0%
Ending Fund Balance -                                  260                     260                              0.0% Ending Fund Balance -                           -                                    -                         0.0%

TOTAL USES 36,991$                       260$                   37,251$                       100.7% TOTAL USES 36,491$               -$                                  36,491$              100.0%

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES FUND 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-14 
EXHIBIT A

O 70 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON
Proposed Budget Amendments

2014

2014 Budget Amendment Exhibit A.xlsx
 Amendments   12/3/2014

2014 Adopted Budget
2014 Proposed 

Amendment
2014 Amended 

Budget % Change
2014 Adopted 

Budget
2014 Proposed 

Amendment
2014 Amended 

Budget % Change

UNEMPLOYMENT FUND EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 

REVENUES REVENUES

Beginning Fund Balance 181,940$                     7,872$                189,812$                     104.3% Beginning Fund Balance 516,793$             150,850$                      667,643$            129.2%
Operating Revenues 42,541                         -                          42,541                         100.0% Operating Revenues 140,628               -                                    140,628              100.0%
Operating Transfers In -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers In -                           -                                    -                       0.0%

TOTAL RESOURCES 224,481$                     7,872$                232,353$                     103.5% TOTAL RESOURCES 657,421$             150,850$                      808,271$            122.9%

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenses 50,000$                       -$                        50,000$                       100.0% Operating Expenses 122,628$             -$                                  122,628$            100.0%
Operating Transfers Out -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers Out -                           -                                    -                         0.0%
Ending Fund Balance 174,481                       7,872                  182,353                       104.5% Ending Fund Balance 534,793               150,850                        685,643              128.2%

TOTAL USES 224,481$                     7,872$                232,353$                     103.5% TOTAL USES 657,421$             150,850$                      808,271$            122.9%

CUMULATIVE RESERVE FUND CONTINGENCY FUND 

REVENUES REVENUES

Beginning Fund Balance 1,379,768$                  (2,697)$               1,377,071$                  99.8% Beginning Fund Balance 416,932$             1,428$                          418,360$            100.3%
Operating Revenues 8,600                           -                          8,600                           100.0% Operating Revenues -                           -                                    -                         0.0%
Operating Transfers In -                                  15,000                15,000                         0.0% Operating Transfers In -                           -                                    -                         0.0%

TOTAL RESOURCES 1,388,368$                  12,303$              1,400,671$                  100.9% TOTAL RESOURCES 416,932$             1,428$                          418,360$            100.3%

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenses -$                                -$                        -$                                 0.0% Operating Expenses -$                         -$                                  -$                       0.0%
Operating Transfers Out -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers Out -                           -                                    -                         0.0%
Ending Fund Balance 1,388,368                    12,303                1,400,671                    100.9% Ending Fund Balance 416,932               1,428                            418,360              100.3%

TOTAL USES 1,388,368$                  12,303$              1,400,671$                  100.9% TOTAL USES 416,932$             1,428$                          418,360$            100.3%

REAL ESTATE EXCISE TAX FUND 1ST QTR REAL ESTATE EXCISE TAX FUND 2ND QTR

REVENUES REVENUES

Beginning Fund Balance -$                                47,606$              47,606$                       0.0% Beginning Fund Balance -$                         46,914$                        46,914$              0.0%
Operating Revenues 240,100                       (17,800)               222,300                       92.6% Operating Revenues 240,100               (17,800)                         222,300              92.6%
Operating Transfers In -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers In -                           -                                    -                         0.0%

TOTAL RESOURCES 240,100$                     29,806$              269,906$                     112.4% TOTAL RESOURCES 240,100$             29,114$                        269,214$            112.1%

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenses -$                                -$                        -$                                 0.0% Operating Expenses -$                         -$                                  -$                       0.0%
Operating Transfers Out 240,100                       (17,800)               222,300                       92.6% Operating Transfers Out 240,100               (17,800)                         222,300              92.6%
Ending Fund Balance -                                  47,606                47,606                         0.0% Ending Fund Balance -                           46,914                          46,914                0.0%

TOTAL USES 240,100$                     29,806$              269,906$                     112.4% TOTAL USES 240,100$             29,114$                        269,214$            112.1%

LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE FUND SUMMARY

REVENUES REVENUES

Beginning Fund Balance -$                                -$                        -$                                 0.0% Beginning Fund Balance 18,166,986$        1,144,192$                   19,311,178$       106.3%
Operating Revenues -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Revenues 16,280,607          849,685                        17,130,292         105.2%
Operating Transfers In 1,278,415                    -                          1,278,415                    100.0% Operating Transfers In 2,235,111            99,336                          2,334,447           104.4%

TOTAL RESOURCES 1,278,415$                  -$                        1,278,415$                  100.0% TOTAL RESOURCES 36,682,704$        2,093,213$                   38,775,917$       105.7%

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenses 1,278,415$                  -$                        1,278,415$                  100.0% Operating Expenses 16,847,555$        954,621$                      17,802,176$       105.7%
Operating Transfers Out -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers Out 2,235,111            99,336                          2,334,447           104.4%
Ending Fund Balance -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Ending Fund Balance 17,600,038          1,039,256                     18,639,294         105.9%

TOTAL USES 1,278,415$                  -$                        1,278,415$                  100.0% TOTAL USES 36,682,704$        2,093,213$                   38,775,917$       105.7%

71 of 167



Position

City Manager 143,472$    - 171,312$    

Community Development Director 113,645$    - 135,697$    

Finance Director 113,645$    - 135,697$    

Parks & Recreation Director 113,645$    - 135,697$    

Public Works Director 113,645$    - 135,697$    

Chief Building Official 98,197$      - 117,252$    

Deputy Finance Director 92,639$      - 110,616$    

City Engineer 92,639$      - 110,616$    

Development Review Engineer 82,449$      - 98,448$      

Senior Information Systems Administrator 80,115$      - 95,661$      

City Clerk/Executive Assistant 77,781$      - 92,874$      

Personnel Manager 75,581$      - 90,247$      

Principal Planner 75,581$      - 90,247$      

Senior Accountant 73,379$      - 87,617$      

Maintenance Supervisor 73,379$      - 87,617$      

Communications & Marketing Manager 73,379$      - 87,617$      

Plans Examiner/Building Inspector 73,379$      - 87,617$      

Recreation Manager 73,379$      - 87,617$      

Senior Planner 71,302$      - 85,138$      

Aquatic Supervisor 69,225$      - 82,658$      

Surface Water Management Program Coordinator 67,226$      - 80,272$      

Permit Center Coordinator 65,307$      - 77,980$      

Construction Inspector 65,307$      - 77,980$      

Parks Planner 65,307$      - 77,980$      

Annual

City of Covington
Employee Positions/Salary Range Schedule

For the Fiscal Year 2014

Salary Range

ORDINANCE NO. 15-14 
EXHIBIT B

72 of 167



Position Annual

City of Covington
Employee Positions/Salary Range Schedule

For the Fiscal Year 2014

Salary Range

Associate Planner/Code Enforcement Officer 63,458$      - 75,773$      

Programs Supervisor/Public Works 63,458$      - 75,773$      

Accountant I 61,610$      - 73,566$      

Engineering Technician/GIS Coordinator 61,610$      - 73,566$      

Personnel & Human Services Analyst 59,866$      - 71,483$      

Senior Deputy City Clerk 59,866$      - 71,483$      

Maintenance Worker 58,124$      - 69,403$      

Accounting Clerk 51,729$      - 61,767$      

Aquatics Specialist 51,729$      - 61,767$      

Athletics Specialist 51,729$      - 61,767$      

Executive Department Assistant/Receptionist 47,420$      - 56,622$      

Customer Service Specialist 44,735$      - 53,415$      

Office Technician II/Executive Office 44,735$      - 53,415$      

Management Assistant 39,814$      - 47,539$      

Water Safety Instructor II 34,628$      - 41,347$      

Specialty Instructor 32,667$      - 39,006$      

Water Safety Instructor 32,667$      - 39,006$      

Recreation Assistant 32,667$      - 39,006$      

Engineering/GIS Intern 28,910$      - 34,519$      

Finance Assistant 28,910$      - 34,519$      

Aquatics Lead 27,531$      - 32,875$      

Lifeguard II 27,531$      - 32,875$      

Maintenance Worker (Seasonal) 27,250$      - 32,538$      

Lifeguard 25,973$      - 31,013$      

73 of 167



Position Annual

City of Covington
Employee Positions/Salary Range Schedule

For the Fiscal Year 2014

Salary Range

Referee 20,904$      - 24,960$      

Recreation Aide

Office Assistant $12/hr flat rate

$12/hr flat rate

74 of 167



 Consent Agenda Item C-8 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  December 9, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE INTERIM CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES WITH BRIDGEVIEW CONSULTING, LLC TO 
UPDATE THE COMPREHENSIVE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLAN. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1.  Professional Services Agreement with Bridgeview Consulting, LLC 
 
PREPARED BY:  Shellie Bates, Programs Supervisor/Public Works 
 
EXPLANATION: 
In January 2011 the City Council adopted the third edition of the Comprehensive Emergency 
Management Plan (CEMP).  The State of Washington Emergency Management Division 
mandates that the plan be updated every four years.  The last two updates have been completed 
by Public Works Department staff with input from Emergency Management Committee 
members and outside agencies.  The last edition was completed without several sections due to 
the lack of staff expertise in the subject matter. 
 
The following sections need to be included in the next update: 

• Annex A – Terrorism 
• Annex B – Catastrophic Event 

 
The state also included some reviewer comments to assist us with the next update in order to 
strengthen our plan.   

• ESF 6 – Mass Care, Housing and Human Services:  Strongly recommend incorporation 
of comprehensive Special Needs support considerations. 

• ESF 11 – Agriculture and Natural Resources:  Strongly recommend development of a 
city-specific comprehensive Pet Shelter/Evacuation Plan and organization and operation 
of Community Points-Of-Distribution sites. 

 
The CEMP update is due to be adopted in January 2015.  In order to receive FEMA 
reimbursement and grant opportunities in the future the CEMP must be updated and maintained. 
 
In the summer of 2014 we began the process of applying for a federal grant to hire a consultant 
to update our plan.  During this process we discovered that one of the eligibility requirements of 
receiving the grant was to have at least a half-time emergency manager whose job duties are 
specifically dedicated to performing emergency management functions.  We would only be 
eligible for $10,562 in grant funds.  We discussed this requirement with the City Manager and 
determined that this was not feasible in the foreseeable future.  Therefore, we were not able to 
secure the grant in 2014.   
 

75 of 167



In October, the Public Works Department sent out a request for proposal to qualified consultants 
to evaluate the City of Covington’s CEMP.  Fourteen consulting firms requested the 
specifications after viewing our advertisement.  We received a total of three proposals by the 
deadline.  Three staff members and one volunteer reviewed all three proposals and all four of the 
reviewers chose Bridgeview Consulting, LLC as their top choice as the most qualified consultant 
to complete the CEMP update process. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not to enter into a Professional Services Agreement with Bridgeview Consulting, LLC. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
General Fund (Central Services – Emergency Management) – Professional Services line item for 
an amount not to exceed $44,000. 
 
The City Council approved a decision card in the 2014 budget for $50,000 with the possibility of 
receiving a grant to offset the cost.  Since we were not eligible for the grant we got a late start on 
the request for proposal process.  Due to the late start in 2014, we submitted a Decision Card 
during the 2015 budget process for Council to consider carrying over $40,000 in the 2015 budget 
to finish the plan update. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the Interim City Manager to execute an Agreement for 
Services with Bridgeview Consulting, LLC to update the Comprehensive 
Emergency Management Plan. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  Interim City Manager, City Attorney, Deputy Finance Director 

76 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 1 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES is entered into this 9th day of December, 2014, by 
and between the City of Covington (“City”), a Washington municipal corporation, and 
Bridgeview Consulting, LLC (“Consultant”), a limited liability company. 
 
 RECITALS: 
 
 A. The City seeks the temporary services of a skilled independent contractor capable 
of working without direct supervision to update the City of Covington Comprehensive 
Emergency Management Plan (CEMP) on behalf of the citizens of Covington; and 
 
 B. The Consultant has the requisite skill and experience necessary to provide said 
services; and 
 
 C. The City has selected the Consultant to perform said services; and 
 
 D. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the terms and conditions under 
which the Consultant will perform said services. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements set forth 
herein, the City and the Consultant do hereby agree as follows: 
 
 1. Engagement.  The City, acting pursuant to its vested authority, does hereby 
engage the Consultant and the Consultant does hereby agree to perform on behalf of the City the 
services more particularly described herein.   
 
 2. Scope of Services.  Upon written authorization from the City to proceed, the 
Consultant shall perform the services described on Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference (“Services”), in a manner consistent with the accepted practices for 
similar services, performed to the City’s satisfaction, within the time period prescribed by the 
City and pursuant to the direction of the City Manager or his or her designee.  In performing the 
Services, the Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations, 
including, without limitation, all City codes, ordinances, resolutions, standards and policies, as 
now existing or hereafter adopted or amended, that may be applicable to its performance.  
 
 3. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period 
commencing upon execution and ending upon the completion of the Services, but in any event 
no later than December 31, 2015 (“Term”), unless earlier terminated under the provisions of this 
Agreement.  This Agreement may be extended for additional periods of time upon the mutual 
written agreement of the City and the Consultant.  Time is of the essence in each and every term 
of this Agreement.  
 

4. Compensation and Method of Payment.   
 
  4.1 Compensation.  In consideration of the Consultant performing the 
Services, the City agrees to pay the Consultant an amount not to exceed $44,000. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

77 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 2 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

  4.2. Method of Payment.  Payment by the City for the Services will only be 
made after the Services have been satisfactorily performed, a voucher or invoice is submitted in a 
form acceptable to the City, and the same is approved by the appropriate City representative.  
Payment shall be made no later than ten days after City Council approval of the invoiced 
amount.   
 
  4.3 First Invoice.  Prior to or along with the first invoice submitted, the 
Consultant shall return to the City a completed “Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and 
Certification”, also known as IRS form W-9. 
 
  4.4 Consultant Responsible for Taxes.  The Consultant shall be solely 
responsible for the payment of any taxes imposed by any lawful jurisdiction as a result of the 
performance and payment of this Agreement. 
 
 5. Warranty.  The Consultant warrants that it has the requisite training, skill and 
experience necessary to provide the Services and is appropriately accredited and licensed by all 
applicable agencies and governmental entities, including but not limited to being registered to do 
business in the City of Covington by obtaining a City of Covington business license.   The 
Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical adequacy and accuracy, 
timely completion and coordination of all plans, designs, drawings, specifications, reports and 
other services prepared or performed pursuant to this Agreement.  The Consultant shall perform 
its work in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement and pursuant to the standards of 
professional care, skill, diligence and competence as are normally exercised by other members 
and/or firms of the profession in good standing working under the same or similar conditions and 
circumstances and in similar communities as the services provided by the Consultant under this 
Agreement.  The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional standards, performance and 
actions of all persons and firms performing work pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of 
Consultant.  The City shall also have the right to deduct from payments to the Consultant any 
costs or damages incurred by the City, or which may be incurred by the City, as a result of the 
Consultant’s failure to comply with the requirements of the Agreement or failure to meet the 
professional standard of care and skill, or both. The City’s approval of plans, drawings, designs, 
specifications, reports and other products of the professional services rendered hereunder shall 
not in any way relieve the Consultant of responsibility for the technical adequacy or accuracy 
thereof.  Neither the City’s review, approval, acceptance of, and/or payment for any services 
shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of 
action arising out of the performance of this Agreement.   
 

6. Ownership and Use of Documents.  Any and all original and copies of records, 
reports, designs, files, documents, drawings, specifications, data or information, regardless of 
form or format, and all other materials prepared or produced by the Consultant in connection 
with the Services shall be the property of the City whether the project for which they were 
created is executed or not. At the termination or cancellation of this Agreement, any and all such 
records or information remaining in the possession of the Consultant shall be delivered to the 
City.  No confidential information obtained or created by Consultant shall be disclosed to any 
person or party other than the City without the City’s prior written consent. 
 

78 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 3 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

 7. Independent Contractor.  It is the intention and understanding of the City and the 
Consultant that the Consultant shall be an independent contractor and that the City shall be 
neither liable nor obligated to pay the Consultant sick leave, vacation pay or any other benefit of 
employment.  The Consultant shall pay all income and other taxes due.  Industrial or any other 
insurance that is purchased for the benefit of the City, regardless of whether such may provide a 
secondary or incidental benefit to the Consultant, shall not be deemed to convert this Agreement 
to an employment contract.  The Consultant will be solely responsible for its acts and for the acts 
of its agents, employees, sub consultants or representatives during the performance of this 
Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create the relation of employer 
and employee or principal and agent between the parties hereto.  The Consultant shall have the 
sole judgment of the means, mode or manner of the actual performance of this Agreement.  The 
Consultant, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for carrying out and 
accomplishing this Agreement. 
 
 8. Indemnification.  To the maximum extent permitted by law, Consultant shall 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City and all of its officials, employees, volunteers, 
principals and agents from all claims, demands, suits, actions, and liability of any kind, including 
injuries to persons or damages to property, which arise out of, are connected with, or are due to 
any errors, omissions or negligent acts of Consultant, its contractor, and/or employees, agents, 
volunteers or representatives in performance of this Agreement; provided, however, that if (and 
only if) the provisions of RCW 4.24.115 apply to the work and services under this Agreement 
and any such damages and injuries to persons or property are caused by or result from the 
concurrent negligence of Consultant, its contractor or employees, agents, volunteers or 
representatives and the City or its employees, volunteers, agents, or representatives, the 
indemnification applies only to the extent of the negligence of Consultant, its contractor or 
employees, volunteers, agents, or representatives.  In the event of any such claims, demands, 
suits, actions, and lawsuits, Consultant shall assume all costs of defense thereof, including 
administrative and legal fees incurred by the City, and of all resulting judgments that may be 
obtained against the City or any of its officers, principals, agents, employees or volunteers.  If 
resulting there from, any lien is placed upon property of the City or any of its officers, principals, 
agents, employees or volunteers, Consultant shall at once cause the same to be dissolved and 
discharged by giving bond or otherwise.  Consultant specifically assumes potential liability for 
actions brought by Consultant’s own employees against the City and for that purpose Consultant 
specifically waives, as respects the City only, any immunity under the Worker's Compensation 
Act, RCW Title 51; and Consultant recognizes that this waiver was the subject of mutual 
negotiation and specifically entered into pursuant to the provision of RCW 4.24.115, if 
applicable. In the event either party incurs attorney's fees, costs or other legal expenses to 
enforce the provisions of this section against the other party, all such fees, costs and expenses 
shall be recoverable by the prevailing party. 
 
 The provisions of this Section shall survive any expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 
 

9. Insurance.  The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of work hereunder by the Consultant, its 
agents, representatives or employees. Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required by the 
agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage provided 
by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in 

79 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 4 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

equity. The Consultant shall at a minimum obtain and carry the following insurance in such 
forms and with such carriers who have a rating satisfactory to the City:  
 

9.1 Automobile liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and 
leased vehicles and written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a 
substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage with combined single limits of 
liability not less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury, including personal injury 
or death and property damage.  If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to provide 
contractual liability coverage.   

 
9.2 Professional liability insurance covering any negligent professional acts, 

errors or omissions for which the Consultant is legally responsible and with combined 
single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy 
aggregate limit for damages sustained by reason of or in the course of operation under 
this Agreement. 

 
The City shall be named as additional insured on all such insurance policies, with the 

exception of professional liability and workers' compensation coverage(s) if the Consultant 
participates in a state-run workers’ comp program.  The Consultant shall provide original 
certificates of insurance and a copy of the amendatory endorsement, concurrent with the 
execution of this Agreement, evidencing such coverage and, at City's request, furnish the City 
with copies of all insurance policies and with evidence of payment of premiums or fees of such 
policies.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than 
A:VII. All insurance policies shall contain a clause of endorsement providing that they may not 
be terminated or materially amended during the Term of this Agreement, except after thirty (30) 
days prior written notice to the City.  If the Consultant's insurance policies are "claims made," 
the Consultant shall be required to maintain tail coverage for a minimum period of three (3) 
years from the date this Agreement is actually terminated or upon project completion and 
acceptance by the City.  The Consultant's failure to maintain such insurance policies shall be 
grounds for the City's immediate termination of this Agreement. 
 

The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement with respect to any event occurring prior to such expiration or termination. 
 

10. Books and Records.  The Consultant agrees to maintain books, records, and 
documents which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the 
performance of the Services and maintain such accounting procedures and practices as may be 
deemed necessary by the City to assure proper accounting of all funds paid pursuant to this 
Agreement.  These records shall be subject, at all reasonable times, to inspection, review or audit 
by the City, its authorized representative, the State Auditor, or other governmental officials 
authorized by law to monitor this Agreement. 
 
 11. Termination.   
 
  11.1 Prior to the expiration of the Term, this Agreement may be terminated 
immediately, with or without cause, by the City.  In the event of termination or suspension, all 
finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, worksheets, models, reports or other materials 
prepared by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be submitted to the City within five 
days of the date of termination. 

80 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 5 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

 
  11.2 In the event this Agreement is terminated or suspended, the Consultant 
shall be entitled to payment for all services satisfactorily performed and reimbursable expenses 
incurred to the date of termination. 
 
  11.3 This provision shall not prevent the City from seeking any legal remedies 
it may otherwise have for the violation, default, or nonperformance of any provision of this 
Agreement.  The remedies provided in this paragraph shall be in addition to any other remedy 
the City may have at law or in equity. 
 

12. Discrimination.  In all Consultant services, programs or activities, and all 
Consultant hiring and employment made possible by or resulting from this Agreement, there 
shall be no discrimination by the Consultant or by the Consultant's employees, agents, 
subcontractors or representatives against any person because of sex, age (except minimum age 
and retirement provisions), race, color, creed, national origin, marital status or the presence of 
any disability, including sensory, mental or physical handicaps, unless based upon a bona fide 
occupational qualification in relationship to hiring and employment.  This requirement shall 
apply, but not be limited to the following:  employment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The 
Consultant shall not violate any of the terms of Chapter 49.60 RCW, Title VII of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, the Americans With Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
or any other applicable federal, state or local law or regulation regarding non-discrimination. 
Any material violation of this provision shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement by 
the City and, in the case of the Consultant's breach, may result in ineligibility for further City 
agreements.   
 
 13. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Consultant shall not assign or transfer any 
interest in this Agreement or subcontract any portion of the services contemplated hereunder 
without the prior written consent of the City. 
 
 14. Conflict of Interest.  The Consultant represents to the City that it has no conflict 
of interest in performing any of the services described herein.  It is recognized that the 
Consultant may or will be performing services during the Term for other parties; provided, 
however that such performance of other services shall not conflict with or interfere with the 
Consultant’s ability to perform the Services.  In the event that the Consultant is asked to perform 
services for a project with which it may have a conflict, the Consultant shall immediately 
disclose such potential conflict to the City.  The Consultant agrees to resolve any actual conflicts 
of interest in favor of the City. 
 

15. Confidentiality.  All information regarding the City obtained by the Consultant 
and designated by the City as confidential in the performance of this Agreement shall be 
considered confidential.  Breach of confidentiality by the Consultant shall be grounds for 
immediate termination of this Agreement. 

  
 16. Non-appropriation of Funds.  If sufficient funds are not appropriated or allocated 
for payment under this Agreement for any future fiscal period, the City will so notify the 
Consultant and shall not be obligated to make payments for services or amounts incurred after 
the end of the City’s current fiscal period.  This Agreement shall terminate upon the completion 
of all remaining services for which funds are allocated.  No penalty or expense shall accrue to the 

81 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 6 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

City in the event that the terms of this provision are effectuated. 
 
 17. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the exhibits attached hereto, 
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this 
Agreement.  There are no promises, terms, conditions or obligations other than those contained 
herein, and this Agreement shall supersede all previous communications, negotiations, 
representations or agreements, either verbal or written, between the parties hereto concerning the 
subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
 18. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by writing 
signed by all parties hereto.   
 
 19. No Waiver.  Failure or delay of the City to declare any breach or default 
immediately upon occurrence shall not waive such breach or default.  Failure of the City to 
declare one breach or default does not act as a waiver of the City's right to declare another breach 
or default. 
 
 20. Successors.  Subject to the provisions of paragraph 13 above, this Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties, their respective heirs, executors, 
administrators, personal representatives, successors and assigns. 
 
 21. Severability.  Each and every provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be 
severable.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement shall 
not affect the other provisions hereof, and the Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if 
such invalid or unenforceable provision were not a part of this Agreement.  
 
 22. Notices.  All notices, payments and other communications hereunder shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered or mailed, by first 
class or certified mail, with postage prepaid, 
 
  22.1 if to the Consultant, to: 
 

Beverly O’Dea 
   Bridgeview Consulting, LLC 
   915 North Laurel Lane 
   Tacoma, WA  98406 
 
or to such other person or place as the Consultant shall furnish to the City in writing; and 
 

22.2 if to the City, to: 
 

Shellie Bates 
City of Covington 

   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite100 
   Covington, WA  98042 
 
or to such other person or place as the City shall furnish to the Consultant in writing. 
 

Notices and payments shall be deemed given upon personal delivery or, if mailed, upon 

82 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 7 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

the earlier of actual receipt or three (3) business days after the date of mailing. 
 
 23. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Washington. 
 
 24. Venue.  The venue for any cause of action arising out of this Agreement shall be 
King County, Washington. 
 
 25. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any default under this Agreement, the 
substantially defaulting party agrees to pay the substantially non-defaulting party’s reasonable 
expenses which the latter incurs by reason thereof, including but not limited to reasonable 
attorney’s fees, whether with respect to the investigation of such default or the determination of 
the application or the pursuit of remedies with respect thereto, or in legal proceedings, or 
otherwise.  The term “legal proceedings” as used in this paragraph shall include all litigation, 
arbitration, administrative, bankruptcy and judicial proceedings, including appeals therefrom. 
 
 26. Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are intended solely for convenience of 
reference and shall be given no effect in the interpretation of this Agreement.   
 
 27. Survival of Representations.  The representations and warranties of the City and 
the Consultant contained hereto shall survive indefinitely. 
 
 28. Independent Counsel.  The Consultant acknowledges that the drafter of this 
Agreement is the City’s legal representative to whom the Consultant does not look to for any 
legal counseling or legal advice with regard to this transaction.  The Consultant further 
acknowledges that it has been advised to consult with independent legal counsel and has had an 
opportunity to do so.  By signing this Agreement, the Consultant acknowledges that it has 
consulted with independent legal counsel of its choice or has knowingly waived the right to do 
so.  There shall be no presumption of draftsmanship in favor of or implied against any party 
hereto. 
 

29. Authority.  Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City and 
the Consultant represents and warrants that such individuals are duly authorized to execute and 
deliver this Agreement on behalf of the Consultant or the City. 
 
 
[Signatures included on next page.  This space left intentionally blank.] 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 
 
// 

83 of 167



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 8 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year 
written above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON 
 
 
____________________________________ 
By: Rob Hendrickson  
Its: Interim City Manager 
 
 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk    Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
 
BRIDGEVIEW CONSULTING, LLC 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
By: Beverly O’Dea 
Its: Principal 

84 of 167



  EXHIBIT A 

Bridgeview Consulting 
Proposed Scope of Work, Timeline and Deliverables 

 
The following represents the identified project Scope of Work as identified in the proposal 
submitted by Bridgeview Consulting, LLC to the City of Covington for completion of their 
Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan.  
 
Project Understanding: 
The City’s RFP identifies the following primary deliverables for this project:   
 

1) An evaluation of the current CEMP (compliance and format) and development of a 
gap-analysis report based on those findings and our recommendations for 
improvement;  

2) Revision of the CEMP as needed to meet the needs of the City and assure State 
compliance, including EMD’s previous recommendations as follows:  

a. Integration and/or development of Annex A – Terrorism 
b. Integration and/or development of  Annex B – Catastrophic Event 
c. Incorporation of Special Needs Support within ESF 6 
d. Integration and/or development of a Pet Shelter/Evacuation Plan 
e. Review and integration as appropriate of Community Points-of-Distribution 

(C-POD); 
3) A plan that addresses preparedness, response and recovery elements; 
4) Draft and final document delivery (Word format). 

 
Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan Scope of Work: 
For purposes of developing this Scope of Work, the CEMP development process has been 
broken down into a phased approach identified below.  Some deliverables identified within the 
City’s RFP have been integrated into the CEMP processes as appropriate. Specific details of the 
CEMP phases of development may be modified during contract negotiation and initial 
meetings, depending on the City’s intent, but the general concepts are identified herein.   
 
Phase 1: Team Development, Kick-Off Meeting and Data-Capture Workshops  
Once the contract is awarded, Consultant will meet with the City’s project manager to discuss 
the process, identify points of contact and the interface between stakeholders, and to identify 
any impediments which may impact the project.  As is necessary for effective planning 
processes, stakeholder involvement will be a catalyst to guarantee not only successful 
completion of the project, but more importantly, for implementation of the Plan. Through 
meetings and interviews, Consultant will gather the data needed to begin the planning process, 
including review of Washington State’s previous findings which detail recommended changes 
for the existing CEMP. Where gaps exist, the stakeholder groups will be required to make 
decisions about how response activities will occur. Consultant will facilitate this process. 
Meetings will occur in various formats (in-person, workshop setting, webinar, telephone 
conference, or one-on-one interviews).  The initial meeting can usually occur within two weeks 
to one month of receipt of the Notice to Proceed depending on availability of City personnel, 
and on how quickly the City will be able to provide the existing documents to the Consultant to 
allow for timely review prior to the first meeting.  It is anticipated that three to four meetings 
will be necessary to facilitate this process.   

85 of 167



   

2 

 
Phase 2:  Gap Analysis, Plan Review, and Hazard Identification  
The City has requested a gap-analysis to identify procedural mechanisms in place, and any gaps 
in those capabilities necessary to complete the functions within the CEMP.  After review of 
City’s existing CEMP, as well as other plan data, and the initial meeting, Consultant will begin 
compiling available relevant information from other existing planning documents, including the 
State and King County CEMPs as it develops its gap analysis, identifying missing plan 
components that will be addressed during the CEMP development.  The newly adopted 2014 
City of Covington Hazard Mitigation Plan, and the 2014 King County Hazard Mitigation Plan 
(which covers the Covington Water District) will be reviewed and serve as the base for 
identifying hazards.   
 
This process will include identifying existing capabilities and procedures currently in place, in 
addition to identifying potential deficiencies. During this stage of development, a generalized 
assessment of existing staff capabilities will occur to identify and enhance operational 
capabilities, as well as potentially identifying training gaps.   As gaps or deficiencies are 
identified, potential remedies will be suggested and discussed to assist the City finding 
resolutions. These recommendations will include outside agencies which may provide services 
where none exist within the City.  It is during this juncture that having a local, experienced 
emergency management company becomes vital, as we are already familiar with many of the 
on-going planning efforts occurring within the city, county, region and state as a whole, which 
will not only support the City during an event, but address any potential gaps within the CEMP 
document.  
 
Added Benefit: An added benefit of retaining a consulting firm that is truly a local emergency 
management firm that has worked in the industry is the knowledge and ability to integrate 
various components from one planning effort into other areas of planning which may be 
simultaneously occurring, or occurring in the near future. Given the limited resources available 
to most of our clients, we at Bridgeview Consulting feel it is important to discuss such options 
with our clients.  By pre-identifying other planning efforts which our clients may be in the 
process of developing, or considering in the near future, we can many times increase the 
economy of scale and support other efforts through simultaneous processes.  This not only 
reduces the need for redundant meetings capturing the same type of information, but also 
reduces the impact on already busy schedules, further reducing the cost of developing such 
plans.  Identifying such opportunities is one of the reasons why our clients have asked us back 
time and again – because we are truly an extension of staff by working in the best interests of 
our clients by bridging the gap in emergency management needs.  As we complete the gap-
analysis portion of this project for the City, we will identify such opportunities.  
 
Phase 3:  Assemble the Plan  
Under this task, the draft plan and all associated annex documents will be authored and 
assembled by Consultant.  The traditional CEMP format as prescribed by Comprehensive 
Planning Guide 101 Version 2.0 and Washington State Office of Emergency Management 
guidelines will be used as the format for this CEMP update. When the CPG and State formats 
are followed, plan users can easily find information in the plan as the same type of information 
is in the same location for each annex.  The traditional format is flexible enough to 
accommodate all strategies.  Following this methodology, at any point in time once the updated 
document has been completed, the planning team will be able to add additional annexes to 

86 of 167



   

3 

include a new function or a newly identified hazard.  Once complete, the document will provide 
for a comprehensive, integrated approach for responding to and managing major incident, and 
will be compliant with the National Incident Management System (NIMS), allowing for 
incorporation of the Emergency Support Function format, aligning the Agency/Department 
Focused format as appropriate.   
 
Plan Layout  
Profile: 

The base plan will include general City data, such as demographic, population and 
geographic information to develop a City profile.  The base plan will also reference and 
incorporate, as appropriate, the required annex documents referenced.  Utilizing 
existing data and processes in place, as well as communications with City personnel and 
outside agencies as appropriate (e.g., King County), Consultant will identify elements 
such as the roles of various city departments and outside agencies that assist with 
emergency management, and identify a command and control structure in place for the 
City. Utilizing the existing information from the previous CEMP document as a starting 
point, we will enhance the data into a new format, incorporating all necessary elements.  
This plan will also include the functional responsibilities that focus on missions (e.g., 
communications, damage assessment, etc.)  This information will describe the actions, 
roles and responsibilities of participating organizations, or identify gaps where none 
exist.  Where the City has no responsibilities in place, but rather relies on county or 
other support, those deficiencies will be addressed in a manner to meet the required 
needs of the CEMP guidance.  The plan will also include an ESF Matrix, with a correlation 
to the appropriate department (or outside supporting entity) which fulfills that function 
for the City.   

 
Identified Plan Components for Inclusion: 

As prescribed by Comprehensive Planning Guide 101 Version 2.0, the CEMP will contain:  
o Introductory material (promulgation, approval, record of change/distribution) 
o Purpose, Scope, Situational Overview and Planning Assumptions 
o Strategies to address the Phases of Emergency Management  
o Identification of Hazards of Concern 
o Concept of Operations 
o Organization and Assignment of Responsibilities 
o Direction, Control and Coordination 
o Information Collection, Analysis and Dissemination 
o Communications 
o Administration, Finance and Logistics 
o Plan Development 
o Plan Maintenance (including training) 
o Authorities and References 

 
Assimilation of data will include describing the framework through which the City’s 
departments and identified coordinating, assisting and cooperating agencies will 
coordinate and execute emergency management strategies. This information will 
include: 

  

87 of 167



   

4 

 
 Continuity of Government/Operations 
 Alert and Warning 
 Population Protection  
 Financial Management 
 Mutual Aid/Multi-Jurisdiction/Agency Coordination 
 Private Sector Coordination 
 Worker Safety and Health 
 Prevention and Protection 
 Damage Assessment 

 
The CEMP will: 

• Provide guidance for a systematic and unified effort to coordinate response and 
recovery operations, incorporating both ESF and Agency/Department format as relevant 
to the City;  

• Function for all-hazards covering the geographic area;  
• Enable both horizontal and vertical integration capabilities to ensure coordinated 

response at the level and scale appropriate for the size and scale of the incident, while 
also incorporating the capabilities of the various jurisdictions which may be involved.   
 

Phase 4 Quality Assurance  
Quality control is a technical process used by all team members to provide deliverables and 
services that meet customer requirements and professional standards.  Quality control 
elements include independent reviews and checks to verify that deliverables and services have 
met regulatory requirements (state and federal), as well as professional standards.  This 
approach focuses on structured problem solving by identifying and attacking root causes of 
problems.  Each consultant team member serves as a QA reviewer for each other, with overall 
QA compliance being completed through use of an established planning checklist, as well as 
review by a technical editor. 
 
Phase 5 Project Management  
Project Management will be dedicated to the overall management, billing and invoicing 
through completion of the project.   
 
Timeline  
For purposes of developing a proposal timeline, the initiation of the project is assumed to occur 
by December 1, 2014.  Consultant understands that the City’s current plan is scheduled to 
expire shortly after initiation of this update process (January 2015).  Therefore, time is of the 
essence in completing the project to reduce the liability on the part of the City.  The below is a 
sample timeline, and can be adjusted to meet the schedules and deadlines of the City. [Note: A 
project of this nature can be completed in a somewhat expedited timeframe as quickly as three 
to four months if dedicated resources from the City are available.   An average timeframe for a 
plan development of this nature would range from six to nine (6-9) months.   For purposes of 
this proposal, the average timeframe of six-to-nine (6-9) months will be utilized, but can be 
adjusted as desired by the City.] 
 
  

88 of 167



   

5 

The anticipated deliverable due date is July 1, 2015: 
 Phase 1 of the project will begin immediately on receipt of Notice to Proceed, the 

process lasting approximately two to four weeks.   
 Phase 2 is comprised of several components with varying delivery dates.  The initial gap 

analysis will be completed within four to six weeks, although items will be identified 
throughout this planning process which will continue to be addressed.  Phase 1 and 2 
occur simultaneously to a certain extent.   

 Phase 3 will begin at the onset of the project initiation with template design, and will 
last until its final delivery as new / updated data is added from the review period.  Phase 
3 will include one Draft CEMP, delivered by June 1, 2015, with a two week review period 
by the City lasting until June 15, 2015.  Draft comments/recommendations will be 
reviewed and accepted by the City’s Project Manager prior to incorporation into the 
plan within five (5) business days (by approximately June 22nd). Once the draft 
changes/recommendations are accepted by the City’s Project Manager, the remaining 
time for project completion will be dedicated to finalizing the plan, with delivery of the 
final CEMP to the City on or about July 1, 2015.  (Delay during draft review or 
acceptance of comments/recommendations may require slight adjustments to this final 
delivery date.)   

 Phase 4 will be completed for the final draft prior to delivery of the project. 
 
Deliverables:  
The CEMP will be written in Microsoft Word format to allow for the maintenance and upkeep of 
the documents once completed, and delivered to the City of Covington in an electronic format.  
Bridgeview Consulting will ensure that the draft CEMP includes the essential elements of an 
integrated comprehensive emergency management program. The concept of operations will 
apply to all hazards that may impact the City and be flexible and scalable in its application, 
following the Incident Command Structure (ICS).    
 
Consultant will provide an electronic copy of the final CEMP for distribution as determined by 
the City’s Project Manager on or about July 1, 2015.  The City will electronically transmit the 
final draft to Washington EMD for review.  Any required changes from that review will be 
completed by the Consultant and resubmitted to the City.  Recommendations made by the 
state during this review will be discussed at that point, as recommendations will not preclude 
the Plan from passing, but may delay delivery depending on elements addressed by the State in 
those recommendations.  It should be noted that Washington EMD attempts to complete 
reviews within 30-45 days, but that timeframe is not within the control of the Consultant.  

89 of 167



Agenda Item 1 
   Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: December 9, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:    PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE TESTIMONY REGARDING THE 

COVINGTON CITY COUNCIL’S PROPOSED ORDINANCE ADOPTING 
THE KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT SIX-YEAR CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN 
FOR 2014-2020 AND 2015 KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT IMPACT FEE 
SCHEDULE. 

 
 CONSIDER PROPOSED ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE KENT SCHOOL 

DISTRICT SIX-YEAR CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN FOR 2014-2020 AND 
2015 KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT IMPACT FEE SCHEDULE AND 
AMENDING THE CAPITAL FACILITIES ELEMENT OF THE COVINGTON 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO INCLUDE THE SAME. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                                                                                   
ATTACHMENT(S):   
 
 1. Proposed Ordinance No. 16-14 Adopting the Kent School District Six-Year Capital 

Facilities Plan for 2014-2020 and the 2015 Kent School District Impact Fee Schedule and 
Amending the Capital Facilities Element of the Covington Comprehensive Plan to 
Include the Same. 

• Exhibit A: Kent School District Six-Year Capital Facilities Plan for 2014-2020 
• Exhibit B: 2015 Kent School District Impact Fee Schedule 

 
2.   City/District Interlocal Agreement adopted December 15, 1999 

.  
PREPARED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director  
                                                            
EXPLANATION:  
 
RCW 82.02 authorizes cities to voluntarily collect impact fees on behalf of school districts to 
provide public school facilities to serve new development, provided a school district has an 
adopted capital facilities plan as part of a local government comprehensive plan.  CMC 18.120 
grants authority to the city to determine, assess and collect school impact fees based upon a 
school district’s capital facilities plan.  The Kent School District (“District”), serving the citizens 
of Covington, has a Six-Year Capital Facilities Plan (“CFP”) that is incorporated by reference as 
a sub-element of the City of Covington’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Since 1999, the City of Covington has collected school impact fees on behalf of the District. 
During that time, no modifications or challenges to the requested fee amounts have been made 
and the city has remitted over $5 million in school impact fees to the District – approximately 
90% coming from single family homes and the remainder from one multi-family project. Over 
the next 12-24 months there are three projects, a multi-family development and two single family 
subdivisions, slated to be under construction that will bring the District $1-2 million in impact 
fees at the current impact fee level.  

90 of 167



 
The District has adopted an update to their CFP for 2014 – 2020. Based upon enrollment 
forecasts, current inventory and capacity, current standard of service, relocatable capacity, and 
costs for facilities and improvements, the District anticipates having sufficient capacity to house 
students over the next six years.  Accordingly, to continue to meet these projected enrollments 
and facility needs, the school impact fees are proposed to remain the same in 2015 as they were 
in 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014.  Those fees are $5,486 for single-family dwellings and $3,378 for 
multi-family dwellings.  (See page 31 of the CFP in Exhibit A to Attachment 1, the table of 
proposed school impact fees and generation factors for new SF and MF residential development 
in the city beginning in 2015, showing “no change to impact fee”).   
 
Pursuant to CMC 18.120.020(2)-(3), the city must adopt by reference the District’s updated CFP 
for 2014-2020 as part of the city’s Capital Facilities Element of our Comprehensive Plan to 
establish the fee program from which the 2015 Kent School District Impact Fee Schedule is 
adopted. Attachment 1 is the proposed ordinance to adopt both, including Exhibit A: Kent 
School District Six-Year Capital Facilities Plan for 2014-2020 and Exhibit B: 2015 Kent School 
District Impact Fee Schedule.  The city will continue to collect an administrative fee from 
developers for managing the school impact fee process.  The city’s administrative fee will be set 
in the annual City Fee Resolution for 2015 to be considered and adopted before the end of this 
year. 
 
OPTIONS:   1) Adopt the school impact fees as presented and requested by the District. 

2) Request that staff bring back recommendations for modifying the school impact 
fee amounts to better reflect the current development environment.  

                     3) Terminate the Interlocal Agreement with the District per Section VII A and no 
longer collect school impact fees on behalf of the District.   

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that council adopt the impact fees as 
presented. The city has a long history of collaborating with the District. The city recognizes the 
need for construction funding and is willing to help the District through the voluntary collection 
of impact fees. Adoption of this ordinance further enhances the city’s role in partnering with 
local agencies for the betterment of the regional community. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No impact, due to the lack of increase in the school impact fee or the city 
administrative fees for 2015.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:       X       Ordinance           Resolution  _____Motion           Other 
 

Council member _____________ moves, Council member ________________ 
seconds, to pass Ordinance No. 16-14 adopting the updated Kent School 
District Six-Year Capital Facilities Plan for 2014-2020 and the 2015 Kent 
School District Impact Fee Schedule and amending the Capital Facilities 
Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to include the same.  

 
REVIEWED BY: Interim City Manager 
  City Attorney 
  Deputy Finance Director  

91 of 167



ORDINANCE NO. 16-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
ADOPTING THE KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT SIX-YEAR 
CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN FOR 2014-2020 AND THE 2015 
KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT IMPACT FEE SCHEDULE; 
AMENDING THE CAPITAL FACILITIES ELEMENT OF 
THE COVINGTON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO INCLUDE 
THE SAME; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature passed the Growth Management 
Act of 1990 and 1991, Chapter 36.70A RCW and Chapter 82.02 RCW (the “Act”), which 
authorizes the collection of impact fees on development activity to provide public school 
facilities to serve new development; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Act requires that impact fees may only be collected for public 
facilities that are addressed by a capital facilities element of a comprehensive land use 
plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Kent School District (“District”) has prepared a capital facilities 

plan in compliance with the Act that has previously been adopted by the City of 
Covington (“City”) within the Capital Facilities Element of the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has adopted fee schedules in the past for the assessment and 

collection of school impact fees upon certain new residential developments on behalf of the 
District; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 18.120.020 of the Covington Municipal code (“CMC”) 

authorizes the City to adopt a district’s capital facilities plan by reference as part of the 
Capital Facilities Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and to adopt an impact fee 
schedule based upon the district’s capital facilities plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has recently adopted an updated Six-Year Capital 

Facilities Plan for 2014-2020 (the “Plan”) and submitted their updated Plan to the City; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Plan contains the elements required by Section 18.120 CMC; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and District have an Interlocal Agreement dated December 

15, 1999, whereby the City will collect impact fees for the District; and   
 
WHEREAS, RCW 36.70A.130 (2)(a)(iv) allows amendment of the capital 

facilities element of a comprehensive plan if done concurrently with the adoption or 
amendment of a city’s budget; and 

 

ATTACHMENT 1

92 of 167



WHEREAS, upon providing appropriate public notice, the Covington City 
Council conducted a public hearing on November 25, 2014, to receive testimony 
regarding the proposed amendment to the Capital Facilities Element of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, the proposed Impact Fee Schedule, and the proposed City 2015 
budget; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 

COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Adoption. The City hereby adopts the Kent School District Six-Year Capital Facilities 
Plan for 2014-2020, as set for in Exhibit A attached and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
Section 2. Amendment. The City hereby amends the Capital Facilities Element of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan to include the updated Kent School District Six-Year Capital Facilities Plan 
for 2014-2020, replacing the District’s previously adopted capital facilities plan.   
 
Section 3.  2015 Fee Schedule. The City hereby adopts the fee schedule setting forth the 
calculation and amounts of 2015 Kent School District impact fees to be collected pursuant to 
Section 18.120 CMC, as set forth in Exhibit B attached and incorporated by this reference. 
 
Section 4. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this 
ordinance and ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it shall remain in force and effect. 
 
Section 5. Corrections. Upon approval of the city attorney, the city clerk and/or code reviser are 
authorized to make necessary corrections to this ordinance, including the correction of clerical 
errors; references to other local, state, or federal laws, codes, rules, or regulations; or ordinance 
numbering and section/subsection numbering. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after 
proper posting and publication.  A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of 
publishing the ordinance in its entirety. 
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Covington on the 9th day of December, 2014. 

 
_______________________                                             
Mayor Margaret Harto 

     
ATTESTED: PUBLISHED:  12-12-14                          

EFFECTIVE:   12-17-14                          
_________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

93 of 167



ORDINANCE NO. 16-14 
EXHIBIT A

94 of 167



95 of 167



96 of 167



97 of 167



98 of 167



99 of 167



100 of 167



101 of 167



102 of 167



103 of 167



104 of 167



105 of 167



106 of 167



107 of 167



108 of 167



109 of 167



110 of 167

smithd7881e
Text Box
April 2014



111 of 167



112 of 167



113 of 167

smithd7881e
Text Box
April 2014



114 of 167



115 of 167



116 of 167



117 of 167



118 of 167



119 of 167



120 of 167



121 of 167



122 of 167



123 of 167



124 of 167



125 of 167



126 of 167



127 of 167



128 of 167



129 of 167



130 of 167



131 of 167



132 of 167



133 of 167



134 of 167



 
 

2015 KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT IMPACT FEE SCHEDULE 
 
 
 
 

Single-family, per dwelling unit    $5,486.00 
 
Multi-family, per dwelling unit    $3,378.00 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 16-14 
EXHIBIT B 

135 of 167



ATTACHMENT 2

136 of 167



137 of 167



138 of 167



139 of 167



140 of 167



141 of 167



142 of 167



Agenda Item 2  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: December 9, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER ENTERING INTO AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITIES OF COVINGTON, MAPLE VALLEY AND BLACK DIAMOND 
RELATING TO BUILDING CODE ADMINISTRATION, BUILDING PLAN 
REVIEW, AND BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICES.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Interlocal Agreement for Building Code Administration, Building Plan Review, 
and Building Inspection Services. 

 
PREPARED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The cities of Covington, Maple Valley and Black Diamond wish to enter into an Interlocal 
Agreement (ILA) with each other for a variety of Building Safety Services, including building 
code administration, building plan review and building inspection.  Currently the City of 
Covington has an ILA for building services with Black Diamond that is scheduled to expire on 
March 22, 2015, after being in place for the past four years.  This new ILA is very similar to the 
current ILA, except that it adds the City of Maple Valley and allows each city to pick the type of 
service they desire from another city.  No city will directly provide or use code enforcement as 
part of this ILA.  The ILA includes provisions for the following services: 

1. Building Code Administration, 
2. Building Plan Review, and  
3. Building Inspections. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Decline the proposed Interlocal Agreement with the other cities at this time. 
Refer Interlocal Agreement to staff for revision of specified terms.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
A slight positive revenue generation will accrue to Covington as the dollar amounts generated 
from providing Building Code Administration and Plan Review Services to Maple Valley and 
Black Diamond should be higher than the costs of Building Inspection Services provided by 
Maple Valley to Covington under this Interlocal Agreement. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to enter into an Interlocal Agreement 
(ILA) between the Cities of Covington, Maple Valley and Black Diamond 
relating to building safety services and sign such ILA in a form substantially 
similar to that provided. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  Interim City Manager; City Attorney; & Deputy Finance Director. 

143 of 167



Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 1 of 9 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE CITIES OF COVINGTON, MAPLE VALLEY, AND BLACK DIAMOND 
FOR 

BUILDING SERVICES 
 

 
 

RECITALS 
 

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into between the City of 
Covington, a Washington municipal corporation (“Covington”), the City of Maple Valley, a 
Washington municipal corporation (“Maple Valley”), and the City of Black Diamond, a 
Washington municipal corporation (“Black Diamond”), (collectively the “Parties” or “Cities” or in 
the singular “Party” or “City”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties are “public agencies” as defined by Chapter 39.34 of the Revised 
Code of Washington (RCW) and through the provisions of that chapter are authorized by state 
law to enter into interlocal agreements on the basis of mutual advantage and thereby to provide 
services and facilities in the manner and pursuant to forms of governmental organization that 
will accord best with geographic, economic, population, and other factors influencing the needs 
of local communities; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties’ have similar building code administration, plans examination, 
and building inspection needs and each Party can realize certain economies from sharing 
resources, thereby providing savings to taxpayers through contracting for shared services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each Party has agreed to compensate a Party for services offered under this 
Agreement; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, it is agreed 
between the Parties as follows: 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
1. Purpose.

 

  It is the purpose of this Agreement to utilize the provisions of state law to enable 
the Parties’ to take advantage of economies of scale in sharing resources and by offering 
building code administration, plans examination, and building inspection services to the 
other Parties.  

2. Services

 

. Covington and Maple Valley (collectively the “Providing Parties” or individually a 
“Providing Party”) agree to offer the following services (“Offered Service(s)”) to the Parties 
upon request (collectively the “Requesting Parties” or individually a “Requesting Party”) 
pursuant to the following. 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

144 of 167



Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 2 of 9 

2.1.      Offered Services.  
 
2.1.1. Building Code Administration. Covington agrees to offer building code 

administration services, performed by Covington’s Building Official, to 
Requesting Parties. 
 

2.1.2. Plans Examination. Covington agrees to offer plans examination services, 
performed by Covington’s Plans Examiner, to Requesting Parties. 

 
2.1.3. Building Inspection. Maple Valley agrees to offer building inspection services, 

performed by Maple Valley’s Building Inspectors, to Requesting Parties.  
 

2.2.      Requests for Offered Services. A Requesting Party shall submit a written request to 
the relevant Providing Party for performance of an Offered Service, including any and 
all needs, specifications, or standards that must be considered. Such written request 
must be made by the Requesting Party’s Community Development Director or 
authorized designee. For the purposes of this sub-section, the Parties agree that a 
written request may be submitted by a Requesting Party to a Providing Party via 
email.  

 
2.3.       Acceptance of Request for Offered Services. The Providing Party shall promptly 

respond to a written request for an Offered Service with a written acceptance or 
denial. The Providing Party may deny a request for an Offered Service at its sole 
discretion and without reason. Such written acceptance or denial of a request for an 
Offered Service must be issued by the Providing Party’s Community Development 
Director or authorized designee. For the purposes of this sub-section, the Parties 
agree that a written acceptance or denial may be issued by a Providing Party to a 
Requesting Party via email. 

 
2.4.      Providing Party Administrative Oversight. The Providing Party shall have 

administrative oversight of the Offered Service requested and shall be responsible 
for invoicing the Requesting Party for the Offered Service rendered pursuant to 
Section 4 herein.  

 
3. Term of Agreement

 

. This Agreement shall become effective as of the date this Agreement is 
approved by the legislative body of at least two (2) Parties and subsequently executed by 
those Parties according to each of those Parties’ adopted policies and procedures. The 
remaining Party may enter into this Agreement at any time upon approval of their legislative 
body and subsequently executed according to that Party’s policies and procedures. Unless 
terminated by all Parties pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, this Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect until December 31, 2015.  

This Agreement may be extended by written agreement of the Parties subject to the 
approval of such extension by each Party’s legislative body.  

 
4. Payment

 

.  Requesting Parties shall pay for Offered Services provided by Providing Parties 
pursuant to the following.  

145 of 167



Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 3 of 9 

4.1.      Payments for Offered Services. A Requesting Party shall pay for actual direct and 
related indirect costs, including any overhead and administrative charges, for Offered 
Services provided by the relevant Providing Party pursuant to the fees listed for each 
Providing Party in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference. Any indirect costs may be waived by a Providing Party at its sole 
discretion. 

 
4.2.      Billing. Each Providing Party shall submit a monthly invoice to each Requesting Party, 

which shall contain the amount of Offered Services provided during the preceding 
month. Payment shall be made by the Requesting Party within thirty (30) days of 
receipt of said invoice from a Providing Party.  

 
4.3.  Disputes.  In the event there is a dispute regarding an invoiced amount by a 

Providing Party, the Parties in dispute shall make every effort to resolve such dispute 
by mutual agreement. In the event there is no mutually agreed resolution to the 
dispute, the relevant Parties shall forward the dispute to each Party’s City 
Manager/City Administrator/Mayor for resolution. In the event there is no resolution 
after review by the Parties’ City Manager/City Administrator/Mayor, the Parties shall 
seek mediation through a mutually agreed mediation service and each Party shall 
bear its own costs for mediation. If mediation is unsuccessful, any Party may pursue 
any legal remedy available from a court of competent jurisdiction. Any dispute that 
has gone to mediation and mediation was unsuccessful in resolving the dispute shall 
be grounds for any Party to terminate this Agreement for material breach. 

 
5. Termination

 
. 

5.1.      Termination by Notice.  Any Party may terminate its participation in this Agreement 
by providing the other Parties with sixty (60) days advance written notice of the 
effective date of such termination. The Party providing such notice shall remain 
responsible for any costs incurred under this Agreement.  

 
5.2.  Termination by Mutual Written Agreement.  This Agreement may be terminated in 

its entirety at any time by a written agreement executed by all of the Parties. 
 

5.3.  Termination for Breach.  Any Party may terminate its participation in this Agreement 
for material breach of the terms of this Agreement upon fourteen (14) days advance 
written notice to the other Parties, provided that disputes regarding billing 
statements shall be handled pursuant to Subsection 4.3 and shall not be deemed a 
breach of this Agreement except as set forth in Subsection 4.3. 

 
6. Indemnification and Hold Harmless. Each Party hereto (the “Indemnifying Party”) shall hold 

harmless and indemnify each other Party hereto, its elected officials, officers, employees, 
and agents (collectively the “Indemnitees”) from and against any and all suits, actions, 
claims, liability, damages, judgments, costs, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees) that result from or arise out of the acts or omissions of the Indemnifying party, its 
elected officials, officers, employees, and agents in connection with or incidental to the 
performance or non-performance of Offered Services, duties, and obligations under this 
Agreement. 

146 of 167



Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 4 of 9 

 
In the event the acts or omissions of the officials, officers, agents, and/or employees of a 
Party in connection with or incidental to the performance or non-performance of Offered 
Services, duties, or obligations under this Agreement are the subject of any liability claims 
by a third party, each Party shall each be liable for its proportionate concurrent negligence 
in any resulting suits, actions, claims, liability, damages, judgments, costs, and expenses and 
for their own attorneys’ fees. 

 
Nothing contained in this section or this Agreement shall be construed to create a right in 
any third party to indemnification. 
 
The provisions of this section shall survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
 
It is further specifically and expressly understood and agreed that the indemnification 
provided herein constitutes each Party’s waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, 
Title 51 RCW, solely to carry out the purposes of this indemnification clause. The Parties 
further acknowledge that they have mutually negotiated this waiver. 

 
7. Insurance

  

.  Covington, Maple Valley, and Black Diamond are members of insurance risk 
pools, and, consistent with the policies established by each Party’s respective risk pool, 
Covington, Maple Valley, and Black Diamond are insured and agree to maintain for the 
duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Offered 
Services hereunder by each Party, its officers, agents, representatives, or employees. Should 
a Requesting Party require specific insurance coverage for a specific Offered Service, the 
Requesting Party shall indicate any additional insurance specifications or standards in their 
written request for Offered Services pursuant to Sub-section 2.2 herein.  

8. Independent Service Provider
 

. 

8.1.      The Parties intend that an independent contractor relationship is created by this 
Agreement. In providing Offered Services under this Agreement, each Providing Party 
is an independent contractor and neither it nor its officers, agents, or employees are 
employees of a Requesting Party for any purpose, including responsibility for any 
federal or state tax, industrial insurance, or Social Security liability. Neither shall the 
provision of Offered Services under this Agreement give rise to any claim of career 
service or civil service rights, which may accrue to an employee of the Providing Party 
under any applicable law, rule, or regulation. Nothing in this Agreement is intended 
to create an interest in or give a benefit to third persons not signing as a party to this 
Agreement. As an independent contractor, each Providing Party shall be responsible 
for the reporting and payment of all applicable local, state, and federal taxes. 

 
8.2.   To the extent that any Requesting Party exercises control and direction over the work 

of any Providing Party, such control and directions will be for purposes of achieving 
the results specified in the request for Offered Services. No agent, employee, or 
representative of a Providing Party shall be deemed to be an employee, agent, or 
representative of a Requesting Party for any purpose, and the employees of a 
Providing Party are not entitled to any of the benefits that a Requesting Party 

147 of 167



Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 5 of 9 

provides for its employees. Each Providing Party shall be solely and entirely 
responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, employees, or representatives 
performed within the authorized scope of its agents, employees, or representatives’ 
duties during the performance of this Agreement. 

 
8.3.  In the performance of the Offered Services herein each Providing Party is an 

independent contractor with the authority to control and direct the performance of 
the details of the Offered Service; however, the results of the Offered Services herein 
must meet the approval of the Requesting Party and shall be subject to the 
Requesting Party’s general rights of inspection and review to secure the satisfactory 
completion thereof. 

 
9. Miscellaneous

  
. 

9.1.      Notices. Notwithstanding Sub-sections 2.2 and 2.3 herein, notices to be provided 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be provided in writing to the person and address 
indicated below. Notices shall be deemed delivered three (3) days after placement of 
the notice in the U.S. Mail, first class postage pre-paid. Courtesy copies of notices 
may be provided via email transmission but shall not constitute delivery of written 
notice as set forth herein. 
 
9.1.1. City of Covington 

Community Development Director 
16720 SE 271st St. Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042 
 

9.1.2. City of Maple Valley 
Community Development Director 
22017 SE Wax Road, Suite 200  
Maple Valley, WA  98038 
 

9.1.3. City of Black Diamond 
Community Development Director 
24301 Roberts Drive 
PO Box 599 
Black Diamond, WA  98010 
 

9.2.      Non-Waiver of Breach. The failure of any Party to insist upon strict performance of 
any of the covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement shall not be 
construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of those covenants, agreements, or 
options, and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect. 

  
9.3.      Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. Subject to Sub-
section 4.3, if the Parties are unable to settle any dispute, difference, or claim arising 
from the Parties’ performance of this Agreement, the exclusive means of resolving 
that dispute, difference, or claim shall only be by filing suit exclusively under the 
venue, rules, and jurisdiction of the King County Superior Court, King County, 

148 of 167



Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 6 of 9 

Washington, unless the relevant Parties agree in writing to an alternative dispute 
resolution process.   

 
9.4.      Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable by any Party, in whole or in part. 

 
9.5.      Modification. No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the provisions of this 

Agreement shall be binding unless made in writing and approved by the legislative 
body of each city. 

 
9.6.  Compliance with Laws.  Each Party agrees to comply with all local, federal, and state 

laws, rules, and regulations that are now effective or in the future become applicable 
to this Agreement. 

 
9.6.1. Nondiscrimination in Employment. In the performance of this Agreement, no 

Party will discriminate against any employee on the grounds of race, religion, 
creed, color, national origin, sex, marital status, disability, sexual orientation, 
age, or other basis prohibited by state or federal law unless based upon a 
bona fide occupational qualification. Each Party shall take such action with 
respect to this Agreement as may be required to ensure full compliance with 
local, state, and federal laws prohibiting discrimination in employment. 

 
9.6.2. Nondiscrimination in Services. No Party will discriminate against any recipient 

of any Services provided for in this Agreement on the grounds of race, 
religion, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital status, disability, sexual 
orientation, age, or other basis prohibited by state or federal law. 

 
9.7.      Entire Agreement. The written terms and provisions of this Agreement, together 

with any exhibits attached hereto, shall supersede all prior communications, 
negotiations, representations or agreements, either verbal or written, of any officer, 
employee, or other representative of each party and such statements shall not be 
effective or be construed as entering into or forming a part of or altering in any 
manner this Agreement. All of the exhibits are hereby made part of this Agreement.  
Should any of the language of any exhibits to this Agreement conflict with any 
language contained in this Agreement, the language of this document shall prevail. 

 
9.8.      Severability. If any provision of this Agreement, in whole or in part, is adjudicated to 

be invalid, such action shall not affect the validity of any provision not so adjudicated. 
 

9.9.      Interpretation. The legal presumption that an ambiguous term of this Agreement 
should be interpreted against the Party who prepared the Agreement shall not apply. 

 
9.10. No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is between the Parties and is not 

meant to benefit any third party.  
 

9.11. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, any of 
which shall constitute an agreement by and among the Parties who have executed 
this Agreement, provided that each Party shall transmit to the attention of the 
Covington City Clerk an original, executed signature page of this Agreement. The 

149 of 167



Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 7 of 9 

Covington City Clerk shall cause a copy of this Agreement and a copy of each 
executed signature page of each party to be posted on the Covington City website 
pursuant to RCW 39.34.040.  

 
 

***Signatures appear on next page*** 
 

150 of 167



Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 8 of 9 

          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties below execute this Agreement, which 
shall become effective pursuant to the terms of Section 3, herein. 

 
CITY OF COVINGTON: 
 
By:      
 (signature) 
Print Name: 
Its 

Rob Hendrickson  

  
Interim City Manager   

DATE:      
 

CITY OF MAPLE VALLEY: 
 
By:      
                       (signature) 
Print Name:
Its

  David W. Johnston 

 
   City Manager   

DATE:      
 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
_____________________________________ 
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
Patricia Taraday, City Attorney 

 
 

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND: 
 
By:      
 (signature) 
Print Name: 
Its 

_Carol Benson_______  

  
Mayor   

DATE:      
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
_________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
City Attorney 
 

 
 
 

 
 

151 of 167



Interlocal Agreement – Building Services 
Page 9 of 9 

EXHIBIT A 
PROVIDING PARTIES’ SERVICE FEES—2015  

 
1. Covington Service Fees 

 
(a) Building Administration Services of Building Official-Hourly fee of $89.00 
(b) Building Plan Review Services of Plans Examiner-Hourly fee of $68.00  
 

2. Maple Valley Service Fees 
 

(a) Building Inspection Services of Building Inspectors-Hourly fee of $75.00, which 
includes vehicle and travel costs 

 
 
 

152 of 167



Agenda Item 3  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: December 9, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:   CONSIDER PROCESS TO APPOINT NEW COUNCIL MEMBER 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:   Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager 

Sara Springer, City Attorney 
         
ATTACHMENT(S): None. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Sharon Scott, Executive Assistant/City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:     
 
A. Background 
At the November 25, 2014, council meeting Councilmember Wayne Snoey announced that he 
will step down from the city council effective December 31, 2014. At that same meeting the 
council directed staff to advertise the vacant council position and to accept applications (in the 
form of letters of interest) through January 2, 2015. The council also expressed interest in 
making an appointment prior to the council summit at the end of January.  
 
At this evening’s council meeting staff will brief the council on the advertising placed to date for 
the vacant council position.  
 
B. Interview Process 
State law gives wide latitude to the council regarding the process for appointing a council 
member. The only state statute the council must comply with is the Open Public Meeting’s Act 
requirement that any interviews of candidates, if conducted, must be performed in an open public 
meeting. The council may then discuss the qualifications of the candidates in executive session. 
 
Staff is asking for direction from the council regarding the details of the desired appointment 
process. Process considerations to be addressed by the council include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Culling Applications: Does the council prefer to interview all applicants or does the 
council prefer to adopt a process and/or criteria for culling received applications to select 
a set of finalists? 
 

• Interview Format: At the last regular council meeting the council indicated they would 
like to conduct interviews of candidates in an interview panel with a moderator directing 
the questioning—does this remain the desired format or does the council prefer to 
conduct individual interviews of candidates? 

 
• Interview Questions: Council must agree to interview questions in an open meeting, or 

agree to appoint one or more council members to create interview questions. For 

153 of 167



reference, the following questions were asked of applicants for Councilmember Don 
Henning’s seat: 

 
o What is your vision for the City of Covington? 
o What are your thoughts regarding: 

 Economic Development and Downtown Development 
 Transportation 
 Public Safety 
 Parks and Recreation 

o How long have you been a Covington resident and how have you contributed to 
City programs and activities? 
 

• Interview Date. Council could conduct interviews, hold an executive session to discuss 
candidate qualifications, and then deliberate and make an appointment in open session at 
either of the regular council meetings in January in order to have the new councilmember 
seated before the council’s annual summit on January 31st. Council may also choose to 
set a special meeting in January to conduct candidate interviews. 

   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not appoint a council member at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional 
candidates. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____ Ordinance            Resolution           Motions       X       Other  
 

Provide consensus on process to appoint new council member. 
 

REVIEWED BY: Interim City Manager  
 City Attorney 
   

154 of 167



 Agenda Item 4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: December 9, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:   CONSIDER PROPOSED ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE CY2015 OPERATING 

AND CAPITAL BUDGET AND IMPLEMENTING THE CY2015 COST OF 
LIVING ADJUSTMENT FOR CITY EMPLOYEES 

 
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. Proposed 2015 Budget Ordinance with exhibits. 
 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The City Council has received the 2015 budget, held public hearings, and listened to 
presentations from staff about their respective departments. The Interim City Manager presented 
an overview of the budget and gave his perspective on current and future budgets. In addition, 
Council reviewed the 6-year financial forecast.  
 
Based on direction from the Council, this ordinance represents the final known budget that the 
Council wishes to adopt for CY2015. The Council will be hearing additional public comment at 
this meeting and modifications may be made before final consideration. 
 

ALTERNATIVES:  
1. The Council could amend the proposed budget for CY2015.   
2. The budget could be adopted at a later date; however the budget is required to be adopted 

prior to the beginning of the new calendar year. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The CY2015 Budget, including transfers-in (out) and fund balances, totals $40,587,895.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:       X    Ordinance  _____Resolution  _____Motion    _____Other 

  
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember __________  
seconds, to pass an Ordinance adopting the CY2015 Operating 
and Capital Budget. 

 

155 of 167



  
 
 

ORDINANCE NO.    17-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING THE 
CY2015 OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET AND 
IMPLEMENTING THE CY2015 COST OF LIVING 
ADJUSTMENT FOR CITY EMPLOYEES. 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 35A.33 RCW requires the city to adopt an annual budget and 

provides procedures for the filing of estimates, a preliminary budget, deliberations, public 
hearings, and final adoption of the budget; and 
 

WHEREAS, a preliminary budget for the year 2015 was prepared and filed with the City 
Clerk; and 
 

WHEREAS, public hearings were scheduled and properly noticed for October 28, 2014, 
at 7:00 pm and November 25, 2014, at 7:00 pm for the purpose of making and adopting the final 
budget for the year 2015; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council did hold said hearings and deliberated and made such 
changes as deemed necessary and proper; and 
 

WHEREAS, the estimated expenditures set forth in said budget being all necessary to 
carry on the government of the City of Covington for the year 2015 and being sufficient to meet 
the needs of the City of Covington for this period; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  The budget for the City of Covington, Washington, for the year 2015 is 
hereby adopted at the fund level in its final form and content as set forth in the document entitled 
“City of Covington 2015 Budget” dated December 9, 2014, a true and correct copy of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit "A", and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

Section 2.  Estimated resources, including fund balances or working capital for each 
separate fund of the City of Covington for the year 2015, and aggregate totals for all such funds 
combined are set forth in summary form below and are hereby appropriated for expenditure at 
the fund level during the year 2015 as set forth below:  
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

156 of 167



FUND AMOUNT 
General Fund $13,655,815  
Street Fund 1,519,855 
Development Services Fund 3,691,233 
Parks and Recreation Fund 2,853,933 
Surface Water Management Fund 10,018,315 
Capital Investment Program 4,135,621 
Cumulative Reserve Fund 1,400,729 
Contingency Fund 421,216 
Real Estate Excise Tax Fund 1st Qtr 175,040 
Real Estate Excise Tax Fund 2nd Qtr 175,040 
Local Improvement District 35,915 
LID Guaranty Fund 35,165 
Long-Term Debt Service Fund 1,276,904 
Unemployment Reserve Fund 281,259 
Equipment Replacement Fund 911,855 
Total All Funds $40,587,895  

 
 

Section 3.  The 2015 budget provides funding for and it is hereby authorized that a 
2.2305% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) for all regular (non-contract) city employees is to 
take effect on January 1, 2015. 
 

Section 4.  The 2015 budget provides funding for and it is hereby authorized that a step 
increase be awarded to all employees on that date which is one year from their date of hire or the 
date of their last step increase.  The exact details of the step program are to be established by the 
City Manager, subject to the funded level in the budget. 
 

Section 5.  The 2015 Salary Schedule for authorized positions is attached hereto as 
Exhibit “B”, and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

Section 6.  Any surplus funds remaining in the Local Improvement District Fund after all 
bonds have been paid shall be transferred to the LID Guaranty Fund.  Upon certification by the 
Finance Director that the LID Guaranty Fund has sufficient funds currently on hand to meet all 
valid outstanding obligations of the fund and all other obligations of the fund reasonably 
expected to be incurred in the near future, then the surplus funds shall be transferred to the 
General Fund.  The net cash of the LID Guaranty fund may be reduced to no less than ten 
percent of the net outstanding obligations guaranteed by the fund. 
 

Section 7.  The Parks and Recreation Fund, Aquatics Division, is allowed to increase or 
decrease FTE’s based on program demand. 
 

Section 8.  A complete copy of the final budget as adopted herein shall be transmitted to 
the Division of Municipal Corporations in the office of the State Auditor and to the Municipal 

157 of 167



Research and Services Center of Washington.  Three copies of the final budget as adopted herein 
shall be filed with the City Clerk and shall be available for use by the public. 
 

Section 9.  Upon the approval of the City Attorney, the City Clerk is authorized to make 
any necessary corrections to this ordinance including, but not limited to, the correction of 
scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, ordinance numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any 
reference thereto. 

 
Section 10.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is determined 

to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this ordinance, and 
ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it, shall remain in force and effect. 
 

Section 11.  This ordinance shall be in force and take effect five (5) days after its 
publication according to law. 
 

Adopted by the Council on this 9th day of December, 2014. 
 
        ________________________ 
 Mayor Margaret Harto 
 
 
ATTESTED: PUBLISHED:  December 12, 2014 
    
 EFFECTIVE:   December 17, 2014 
____________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

158 of 167



Surface Capital
Development Water Investment Cumulative 

General Street Services Parks Management Program Reserve
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

 Beginning Fund Balances
     (Projected), January 1, 2015 4,176,665$          436,072$             2,436,070$          224,078$             7,847,483$          1,848,931$          1,392,129$          

Projected Revenues: 9,443,985            607,150               1,255,163            1,398,834            2,170,832            1,602,040            8,600                   

Projected Expenditures: (7,299,483)           (1,075,478)           (1,099,538)           (2,450,509)           (2,380,655)           (2,108,835)           -                            

Fund Transfers In: 35,165                 476,633               -                            1,223,313            -                            -                            -                            
   Fund Transfers (Out): (2,599,286)           -                            -                            (27,484)                -                            -                            -                            

     Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
          Over Expenditures (419,619)              8,305                   155,625               144,154               (209,823)              (506,795)              8,600                   

Base Budget Projected Ending Fund
     Balances, December 31, 2015 3,757,046$          444,377$             2,591,695$          368,232$             7,637,660$          1,342,136$          1,400,729$          

Decision Packages:

   Decision Packages Expenditures: (145,100)              (14,835)                -                            (118,990)              (45,515)                (684,650)              -                              

   Related Revenues -                            -                            -                            (32,292)                -                            334,650               -                            

   Fund Transfers In: -                            -                            -                            40,000                 -                            350,000               -                            
   Fund Transfers (Out): (390,000)              -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

   Debt Proceeds: -                              -                            -                            -                              -                            -                              -                            

      Total Decision Packages (535,100)              (14,835)                -                            (111,282)              (45,515)                -                            -                            

Assigned Ending Fund Balance 1,884,255            -                            -                            -                            -                            152,876               -                            

Adjusted Ending Fund 
     Balances, December 31, 2015 1,337,691$          429,542$             2,591,695$          256,950$             7,592,145$          1,189,260$          1,400,729$          

Totals for Budget Ordinance Sources 13,655,815$        1,519,855$          3,691,233$          2,853,933$          10,018,315$        4,135,621$          1,400,729$          

Totals for Budget Ordinance Uses (13,655,815)$       (1,519,855)$         (3,691,233)$         (2,853,933)$         (10,018,315)$       (4,135,621)$         (1,400,729)$         

ORDINANCE NO. 17-14 
EXHIBIT A

159 of 167



 2015
City of Covington
Adopted - By Fund

For the Fiscal Year 2015

Revised 12/4/2014 9:50 AM

Unemployment
Real Estate Real Estate L.I.D. L.I.D. Long-Term Insurance Equipment

Contingency Excise Tax Excise Tax 99-01 Guaranty Debt Service Reserve Replacement
Fund Fund 1st Qtr% Fund 2nd Qtr% Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

421,216$             -$                         -$                         250$                    -$                         -$                         233,227$             740,959$             19,757,080$     

-                            175,040               175,040               35,665                 -                            -                            48,032                 160,896               17,081,277       

-                            -                            -                            (500)                     -                            (1,276,904)           (50,000)                (73,308)                (17,815,210)      

-                            -                            -                            -                            35,165                 1,276,904            -                            -                            3,047,180         
-                            (175,040)              (175,040)              (35,165)                (35,165)                -                            -                            -                            (3,047,180)        

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            (1,968)                  87,588                 (733,933)           

421,216$             -$                         -$                         250$                    -$                         -$                         231,259$             828,547$             19,023,147$     

-                            -                              -                              -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            (1,009,090)        

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            10,000                 312,358             

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            390,000             
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            (390,000)           

-                              -                            -                            -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                         

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            10,000                 (696,732)           

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            2,037,131         

421,216$             -$                         -$                         250$                    -$                         -$                         231,259$             838,547$             16,289,284$     

421,216$             175,040$             175,040$             35,915$               35,165$               1,276,904$          281,259$             911,855$             40,587,895$     

(421,216)$            (175,040)$            (175,040)$            (35,915)$              (35,165)$              (1,276,904)$         (281,259)$            (911,855)$            (40,587,895)$    

160 of 167



Position

City Manager 146,672$    - 175,133$    

Community Development Director 116,180$    - 138,726$    

Finance Director 116,180$    - 138,726$    

Parks & Recreation Director 116,180$    - 138,726$    

Public Works Director 116,180$    - 138,726$    

Chief Building Official 100,387$    - 119,868$    

City Engineer 94,705$      - 113,083$    

Deputy Finance Director 94,705$      - 113,083$    

Development Review Engineer 84,288$      - 100,645$    

Senior Information Systems Administrator 81,902$      - 97,795$      

City Clerk/Executive Assistant 79,516$      - 94,946$      

Personnel Manager 77,267$      - 92,261$      

Principal Planner 77,267$      - 92,261$      

Senior Accountant 75,016$      - 89,573$      

Maintenance Supervisor 75,016$      - 89,573$      

Communications & Marketing Manager 75,016$      - 89,573$      

Plans Examiner/Building Inspector 75,016$      - 89,573$      

Recreation Manager 75,016$      - 89,573$      

Senior Planner 72,892$      - 87,037$      

Aquatic Supervisor 70,769$      - 84,502$      

Surface Water Management Program Coordinator 68,725$      - 82,062$      

Permit Center Coordinator 66,764$      - 79,720$      

Construction Inspector 66,764$      - 79,720$      

Parks Planner 66,764$      - 79,720$      

Annual

City of Covington
Employee Positions/Salary Range Schedule

For the Fiscal Year 2015

Salary Range

ORDINANCE NO. 17-14 
EXHIBIT B

161 of 167



Position Annual

City of Covington
Employee Positions/Salary Range Schedule

For the Fiscal Year 2015

Salary Range

Associate Planner/Code Enforcement Officer 64,873$      - 77,462$      

Programs Supervisor/Public Works 64,873$      - 77,462$      

Accountant I 62,984$      - 75,208$      

Engineering Technician/GIS Coordinator 62,984$      - 75,208$      

Personnel & Human Services Analyst 61,201$      - 73,076$      

Senior Deputy City Clerk 61,201$      - 73,076$      

Maintenance Worker 59,420$      - 70,951$      

Accounting Clerk 52,883$      - 63,145$      

Aquatics Specialist 52,883$      - 63,145$      

Athletics Specialist 52,883$      - 63,145$      

Executive Department Assistant/Receptionist 48,478$      - 57,885$      

Customer Service Specialist 45,733$      - 54,608$      

Office Technician II/Executive Office 45,733$      - 54,608$      

Management Assistant 40,702$      - 48,600$      

Water Safety Instructor II 35,400$      - 42,269$      

Specialty Instructor 33,396$      - 39,877$      

Water Safety Instructor 33,396$      - 39,877$      

Recreation Assistant 33,396$      - 39,877$      

Helpdesk Technician I 29,777$      - 35,555$      

Engineering/GIS Intern 29,555$      - 35,291$      

Finance Assistant 29,555$      - 35,291$      

Aquatics Lead 28,145$      - 33,607$      

Lifeguard II 28,145$      - 33,607$      

Maintenance Worker (Seasonal) 27,858$      - 33,265$      

162 of 167



Position Annual

City of Covington
Employee Positions/Salary Range Schedule

For the Fiscal Year 2015

Salary Range

Lifeguard 26,552$      - 31,704$      

Referee 21,370$      - 25,517$      

Recreation Aide

Office Assistant $12/hr flat rate

$12/hr flat rate

163 of 167



  
Covington City Council Meeting 
           Date:  December 9, 2014 

 

 
DISCUSSION OF  

FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 
 
 
 

7:00 p.m., Tuesday, December 23, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 

6:00 p.m., Tuesday, January 13, 2015 Special Meeting – 
Joint Study Session with Planning Commission 

 
7:00 p.m., Tuesday, January 13, 2015 Regular Meeting 

 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

164 of 167



For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay 
service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400 

 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday December 23, 2014                                                                                               City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – NONE 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  November 19 & December 17 meetings. 
• Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  December 11 meeting. 
• Planning Chair Sean Smith:  December 18 meeting; December 4 meeting canceled. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  December 4 meeting. 
• Future Meetings:  Human Services December 11 meeting canceled; next meeting January 8 

 
NEW BUSINESS - NONE 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
 
ADJOURN 

Draft 
as of 12/04/14 

 

165 of 167

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION WITH PLANNING COMMISSION 
Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

Tuesday, January 13, 2015 – 6:00 p.m. 
                                                                         
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City Council, 
Commissioners, and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may involve presentations, 
feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the staff on key policy matters. 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
 1. Planning Commission 2015 Work Plan (Hart) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay services, please use the state’s toll-free relay service at 800-833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-
480-2400. 
 
 

*Note* A Regular Council meeting will follow at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

Draft 
as of 12/04/14 

 

166 of 167

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay 
service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, January 13, 2015                                                                                                  City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Joint Meeting with the Planning Commission is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  November 18, 2014; 7:00 p.m. Special Meeting; November 25, 2014 Regular Meeting; 

and December 9, 2014 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Appointments to Council’s Commission Interview Sub Committees (Council) 
C-4. Appointments to Council’s Audit Committee (Hendrickson) 
C-5.  Appointments to Council’s Commission Exit Interview Sub Committee (Council) 
C-6. Appointments to 2015 Representatives to Regional Boards and Committees (Council) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointment to Arts Commission (Council) 
2. Set Date to Consider Initiation of an Annexation for Hawk Property (Hart) 
3. Interview City Council Candidates (Council) 
4. Consider Appointment of City Councilmember (Council) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 

PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 

ADJOURN 

Draft 
as of 12/04/14 

 

167 of 167

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	12-09-2014 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, December 9, 2014                                                                                                City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	C-1 Green Sheet 12-09-2014 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	C-1 Attachment 1 11.18.2014 Special Meetng for Executive Session Minutes
	C-2 Green Sheet 12-09-2014 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	C-2 Attachments
	C-3 Green Sheet Mountain Meadows Agenda Bill_Consent Agenda_120914docx
	Consent Agenda Item C-3

	C-3 Attachment 1_Mountain Meadows Resolution
	C-3 Attachment 1_Exhibit 1_Final Plat Map
	C-3 Attachment 2_SEPA MDNS
	C-3 Attachment 3_ Mountain Meadows HE Decision
	C-4 Green Sheet 12-09-14 Abaco Pacific Blue Sheet
	C-4 Attachment 1 12-09-14 Abaco Pacific Amendment 3
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	By: Rob Hendrickson
	ABACO PACIFIC, INC.
	By: Jeri Cranney

	C-5 Green Sheet 12-09-14 Wilson Fleet Services Agreement Blue Sheet
	C-5 Attachment 1 Wilson Fleet Service Contract_SBS Edit
	CONTRACT FOR SERVICES

	C-6 Green Sheet 12-09-14  2015 OER Contract
	C-6 Attachment 1 2015_COV-OER_Consultant_Agreement
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES
	RECITALS:
	Shellie Bates
	City of Covington
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager
	OLYMPIC ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES
	Paul Devine, General Manager
	COUNTY OF ____________)
	GIVEN my hand and official seal this ______ day of ______________________, 2014.

	C-7 Green Sheet 2014 Budget Amendment Blue Sheet
	C-7 Attachment 1 2014 Budget Amendment Attachment 1 Ordinance
	ORDINANCE NO.  15-14

	C-7 Attachment 1 Exhibit A 2014 Budget Amendment Exhibit A
	Amendments

	C-7 Attachment 1 Exhibit B 2014 Budget Amendment Exhibit B
	Salary Ranges

	C-8 Green Sheet 12-09-14 CEMP Blue Sheet
	C-8 Attachment 1 Agreement for Services - Bridgeview Consulting
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES
	RECITALS:
	Shellie Bates
	City of Covington
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	By: Rob Hendrickson
	BRIDGEVIEW CONSULTING, LLC
	By: Beverly O’Dea

	Item 1 Blue Sheet - Kent School CIP  & Impact Fees 2015 Adoption
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1 Attachment 1 Ord Adopting School Impact Fees 2015
	Item 1 Attachment 1 EXHIBIT A Final Capital Facilities Plan 2014-15 to 2019-20
	Item 1 Attachment 1 EXHIBIT B to Ordinance-Table of 2015 Impact Fees 11-25-14
	Item 1 Attachment 2 City-District Interlocal Agreement
	Item 2 Blue Sheet Maple Valley Black Diamond ILA for Building Administration & Inpsection 12-9-14
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 2 Attachment 1 ILA_COV_MV_BD_Bldg Services_2Dec2014_v1
	Item 3 Blue Sheet 12-09-2014 Process to Appoint New Councilmember_SBS Edit
	Agenda Item 3

	Item 4 Blue Sheet 12-9-14 2015 Budget Adoption Blue Sheet
	Item 4 Attachment 1 12-9-14 2015 Budget Adoption Ordinance
	Item 4 Attachment 1 Exhibit A for 2015 Budget Ordinance
	2015 Budget

	Item 4 Attachment 1 Exhibit B for 2015 Budget Ordinance
	Salary Ranges

	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	12-23-2014 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday December 23, 2014                                                                                               City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – NONE

	01-13-2015 Special Joint Meeting w-Planning Commission Agenda
	Tuesday, January 13, 2015 – 6:00 p.m.
	ROLL CALL
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	01-13-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, January 13, 2015                                                                                                  City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




